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Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority

Narrative Statement
1.

Introduction

The purpose of the Narrative Statement is to provide a summary of the most significant matters reported in the
Financial Statements. It explains the purpose of the Financial Statements that follow, summaries of the
Authority’s financial activities during 2015/2016 and its financial position as at 31st March 2016. It also looks to the
future and considers the challenges faced by the Authority.
2.

Background

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority (DFRA) is responsible for the finances of Derbyshire Fire and Rescue
Service (DFRS), with a net budget of £39.1m for 2015/2016. The Authority is responsible for providing fire and
rescue services to a population of more than a million people in the City of Derby and the County of Derbyshire.
In 2015/2016 Command and Control received around 18,000 calls and the Authority responded to over 7,500
incidents. The Authority manages its affairs to ensure the economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
to safeguard its assets. This remains vital if the Authority is to continue to deliver a high quality service to its
communities. This responsibility is shared by all Members and Officers of the Authority under the leadership of
the Fire Authority and the Chief Fire Officer / Chief Executive. The Director of Finance/Treasurer plays a pivotal
role in ensuring financial stewardship.
The Authority continues to face significant financial challenges, particularly through austerity and extensive
financial constraint. The 2015/2016 outturn position largely reflects the Authority’s comprehensive and timely
approach to making savings before the full impact of continuing and emergent funding reductions. The Authority
planned for funding reductions of £5m (25%) over the period of the 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review
(2011/2012 to 2014/2015), and experienced further funding reductions of £1.63m as part of the 2015/2016
Settlement Funding Assessment. The Authority has been proactive in its approach to funding reductions, having
secured savings of around £12.2m over the period 2011/2012 to 2014/2015. These have primarily been realised
through the Authority’s ‘Effectiveness Programme’, which was designed to deliver ongoing savings. Of this figure
savings of around £5.6m are anticipated to be sustainable and ongoing in nature. Further planned savings of
£1.3m were achieved in 2015/2016 through the programme ‘Fit to Respond’ as endorsed through the ‘Fit to
Respond Service Plan 2014/2017’. Additional savings of £0.95m (part year effect £0.7m in 2015/2016) were
achieved ahead of target and are in relation to the Middle Manager’s Review and a change in duty system at
Swadlincote Fire Station. The Authority continues to exploit opportunities for continuous improvement and
enhanced effectiveness and efficiency in its service delivery. Performance against budget is monitored closely by
the Authority and also by the Strategic Leadership Team, which consists of the Authority’s senior officers.
3.

The Financial Statements

This document contains the Authority's accounts for 2015/2016 which have been prepared in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) and in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in Great Britain 2015/2016 (‘the Code’) and the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2014/15
(SeRCOP). The accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position and transactions of the Authority.
Appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently and prudent judgements and estimates have
been made in compliance with the Code. The Authority keeps proper, up-to-date financial records, maintains
effective internal control, risk management systems and takes all reasonable steps to ensure the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The following sections provide the reader with:
•
•
•

An explanation of the accounting statements which follow;
A review of the Authority’s financial performance in 2015/2016; and
The Authority’s financial position as at 31st March 2016.

A glossary of terms is provided on page 80 - 83 of these accounts to assist the reader.
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4.

The 2015/2016 Statements of Accounts

The main statements and their purpose within the accounts are the:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•

5.

Statement of Responsibilities – this sets out the responsibilities of the Authority and the Director of
Finance/Treasurer for preparing the accounts.
Annual Governance Statement – this sets out the framework within which financial control is managed
and reviewed and the main components of the system.
Movement in Reserves Statement – this statement shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other unusable reserves (i.e those reserves which are not
backed by true cash and hold accounting adjustments only). The ‘(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services’ line shows the true cost of providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for Council Tax setting. The ‘Net
(Increase) / Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves’ line shows the statutory General Fund
Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from Earmarked Reserves undertaken by the Authority.
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account – This statement shows the accounting cost in the
year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from taxation.
Balance Sheet - this summarises the financial position of the Authority as at 31st March 2016.
Cash Flow Statement - this summarises the total external cash movements during the year for revenue
and capital purposes.
Statement of Accounting Policies – this explains the basis for recognition, measurement and
disclosure of transactions and other events in the accounts.
Notes to the Core Financial Statements - this set of notes covers all the core financial statements and
provides more information on particular items within the core financial statements.
Pension Fund - Derbyshire County Council administers the Local Government Pension Fund. The
Firefighters’ pension schemes are administered by Leicestershire County Council. These became
funded schemes on 1st April 2006 whereby any surplus or deficit on the fund is ‘topped up’ by the
Government.
Auditor’s Report to the Authority – this is the report of the independent Auditor on the Statement of
Accounts.
Spending and Funding

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority is a precepting Authority. This means a substantial part of the funds
required to operate are generated from a direct charge on the Council Tax payer, the remainder coming from
Government Grant and income generated by the Authority.
Revenue Support Grant for 2015/2016 reduced by £1.8m (17.3%) as compared to 2014/2015 levels. The Fire
Authority agreed a budget which amounted to £39.1m in total.
The Authority received Revenue Support Grant of £8.6m, and National Non-Domestic Rates of £5.6m from the
Department for Communities and Local Government. The Authority also issued a precept on each of the District
Councils in the county amounting to £21m. Non domestic rates income of £2.8m was received directly from the
district councils. All amounts received are disclosed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account.
The Code of Accounting Practice defines how the Authority’s expenditure should be split within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. However, expenditure is at subjective code level (by type)
and the table on the following page shows this expenditure compared to the Updated Original Budget as
approved by the Authority.
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Revenue Expenditure 2015/2016
Revenue expenditure consists of the day-to-day running costs of the Authority, such as employee costs, premises
and transport related costs, as well as any income generated. The 2015/2016 Outturn position is summarised
below, being revenue expenditure of £37m against a budget of £39.1m, and income of £39.4m against a budget
of £39.1m. Actual income and expenditure for the 2015/2016 financial year is shown against the Authority’s
Approved Budget below. The underspend against the Budget is £2.4m. After taking account of a £2.5m charge
for the writing down of deferred charges (leases), a revenue contribution from reserves of £0.2m is required. The
underspend reflects the Authority’s comprehensive and timely approach to making savings before the full impact
of continuing and emergent funding reductions, further demonstrated by future year savings arising through the
restructuring of the leasing portfolio. Furthermore, a favourable level of closing reserves will be essential in
supporting the Authority’s commitment to longer term planning, future development of the Service, and the
continued protection of its communities.
Budget Management Statement
Actual
2014/2015

Revenue Expenditure

£'000

Budget

Actual

Variance

2015/2016

2015/2016

Deficit/ (Surplus)

£'000

£'000

£'000

24,963

Employee Costs (Note 1)

25,987

24,937

(1,050)

1,178

Indirect Employee Costs

1,203

1,164

(39)

2,262

Premises Costs

2,310

2,233

(77)

1,296

Transport Costs

1,342

1,333

(9)

3,733

Supplies & Services

3,468

3,375

(93)

714

951

237

1,317

1,168

(149)

0

2,544

2,544

2,451

2,024

(427)

318

(2,713)

(3,031)

39,110

37,016

(2,094)

(21,125)

(21,050)

75
0

776
1,205
0
613
(292)
35,734

Capital Financing Costs (Note 2)
Minimum Revenue Provision (Note 3)
Write Down of Deferred Charges (Note 4)
Contribution to Capital (Note 5)
Use of Reserves (Note 6)
Net Expenditure

Financing of Net Operating Expenditure
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
(20,331)

Precept

(10,396)

Revenue Support Grant

(8,610)

(8,610)

National Non-Domestic Rates

(8,444)

(8,363)

81

(931)

(1,354)

(423)

(39,110)

(39,377)

(267)

(8,094)
(1,035)

Other Income (Note 7)

(39,856)

Total Financing

Overall Position

(4,122)

Net Position

0

(2,361)

(2,361)

Note 1 - an underspend of £1.050m (4%) reflects a rigorous and challenging approach to vacancy management
and to filling vacancies on a like for like basis. The Service was holding 28 vacancies as at 31st March 2016,
comprising of operational vacancies 11, and support vacancies 17. DFRS continues to be vigilant when recruiting
to vacant posts in future, whilst taking account of the retirement profile and operational need.
Note 2 – the early termination of finance leases has resulted in higher interest payments in the current year, as
the Service has absorbed an element of future years’ interest. This additional cost of £237,488 is offset fully by
savings to be achieved through the restructuring of the lease portfolio in years 2016/2017 onwards.
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Note 3 - underspends of £148,496 arise through the purchase of 7 Water Ladders in place of leasing. The
2016/2017 budget has been reduced by £0.7m in light of substantial savings associated with the restructuring of
the leasing portfolio, realisable 2016/2017 onwards.
Note 4 - this cost relates to the rescheduling of Deferred Charges (these are the Authority’s finance leases) as
approved by Members at the February Fire Authority meeting. The costs have been charged to the Revenue
Account rather than the Capital Programme as originally intended. The cost of this transaction will be met from
underspends and reserves, in line with the February Fire Authority report. A corresponding entry has been made
through a Contribution from Earmarked Reserves in the Management Accounts.
Note 5 - the Original Budget of £1.7m was increased to £2.5m through the recognition of reduced staffing budget
requirements in year. This was due to savings arising through changes to the duty system at Swadlincote Fire
Station, which were achieved ahead of target, and the Middle Managers Review. Revenue financing of the capital
programme in 2015/2016 amounts to £2.024m, resulting in an underspend of £427,010. This is due to lower
expenditure than anticipated in year, particularly in the areas of lease termination payments, and the new
headquarters.
Note 6 – the variance relates to the opposite accounting entry to the writing down of deferred charges, being a
transfer from reserves to fund costs associated with the restructuring of the leasing portfolio. Note 4 refers.
Note 7 – additional income includes a higher level of Section 31 Grant funding than anticipated £104,639, lease
agreement income of £84,628 relating to changes to the rate of corporation tax and writing down allowances, and
income of £34,142 generated through the retrospective renegotiation of lease break clauses. Income of £50,000
from Chesterfield Borough Council is in relation to the surrender of the ground lease for the former Chesterfield
Fire Station site. Other small amounts of income include £29,172 associated with the Emergency First
Responder Pilot and £10,000 is in connection with a Bellwin Scheme claim for the mobilisation of Derbyshire Fire
and Rescue Service personnel to Lancashire in early 2016, to assist with issues of severe flooding.
Capital Expenditure 2015/2016
Capital Expenditure in the year amounted to £3.3m. This is a variance of £4.8m against the revised budget of
£8.1m. £3.8m of the variance relates to finance lease terminations which were charged to the revenue account
rather than capital. The capital programme was funded as follows: £2.0m from revenue and reserves and £1.3m
from capital grants.
Capital expenditure and financing is summarised in the table below:
2014/15

Capital Expenditure

2015/16

£'000

£'000

222

Building Projects

564

Technology Projects

1
883

1,352

Equipment

2,462

2,138

Total

3,346

2014/15

Financing of Capital Expenditure

2015/16

£'000
(613)
(1,496)
(29)

£'000
Revenue and Reserves

(2,024)

Capital Grant

(1,316)

Capital Receipts

(6)

0

Borrowing

0

0

Finance Leases

0

(2,138)

Total Financing

(3,346)

The capital grant consists of £0.914m Transformation Capital Grant Funding from CLG for the funding of the New
Combined Headquarters Project. The remaining £0.402m relates to a specific capital grant to be spent on the
replacement control room project which is a joint undertaking between Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and
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Leicestershire Fire Authorities. Each authority was awarded a grant of £1.8m for this purpose (£5.4m in total) and
final contract payments are due to be made in 2016/2017.
6.

Our Service Achievements

Best Value Performance Indicator - %age of invoices paid within 30 days of receipt
Until 2008 Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs) provided a rounded view of Local Authority and Fire
Service performance delivery; allowing authorities to compare their performance with other authorities and
providing residents with information about how their local authority or fire service had been performing.
Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service has continued to use the BVPI as a means of measuring performance,
recognising prompt payment requirements, and to put into effect service improvement.
During 2015/2016 99.39% of all invoices paid were within 30 days of receipt, equating to only 47 invoices in the
year being paid after more than 30 days.

Service Key Achievements during 2015/2016
During 2015/2016, the Service is proud to say it delivered numerous key projects, as set out in the Service Plan.
They have been achieved through the dedication and hard work of personnel within the Service.
Below are just a few of our successes – (we will publish a more comprehensive review in our Annual Report
2015/2016).
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Implementation of the Tri-Control Services with Nottingham and Leicestershire Fire and Rescue
Service;
Procurement of a Light Water Ladder Vehicle;
Completion of a cultural survey with outstanding positive results;
Successful trial of the Emergency First Responder Project at Buxton, Dronfield, Staveley and
Matlock Fire Station;
Successful implementation following a review of operational middle managers to effectively manage
the Service;
Completion of a review on aligning training Retained Duty System personnel with their station risk
profile;
Delivery of the requirements of the independent Society for IT Managers Review;
Review and redesign of the whole time recruitment process, leading to a successful recruitment of
Firefighters within the Service;
Successful implementation of a change in duty system at Swadlincote Fire Station.
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7.

Borrowing

Total debt outstanding at 31st March 2016 was £12.0m, £11.4m of which related to borrowing that is owed to the
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) at fixed rates of interest and £0.6m relates to finance leases. £3.0m of finance
leases have been repaid during 2015/16 as part of an early finance lease termination review. No new PWLB
borrowing has been undertaken in the last four years, and the Authority did not enter into any new finance leases
in 2015/2016. The Authority closely monitors borrowing and looks to limit the need to borrow in line with the
Medium Term Financial Strategy to ensure it is prudent and only for capital purposes.
8.

Short Term Investments and Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Fire Authority holds £14m short term investments which represent short fixed-term deposits held with various
financial institutions as covered by the Treasury Management Strategy. Total interest for the year on investments
was £0.146m.The average rate of interest for investments held during 2015/2016 was 0.51% which is an increase
from 0.43% for 2014/2015. The recommended benchmarking rate for Authorities is the average 7 day LIBID rate,
which is 0.45%.
9.

Reserves and Balances

At 31st March 2016 the Authority had uncommitted General Reserves of £2.5m (£2.5m as at 31st March 2015),
Earmarked Reserves of £17.0m (£17.2m as at 31st March 2015), a TriControl and New Dimensions Reserve of
£1.9m (£1.9m as at 31st March 2015), a Strategic Reserve of £0.8m (£0.8m as at 31st March 2015), an Invest to
Save Reserve of £0.5m (£0.5m as at 31st March 2015) and Tri Control Capital Grant of £0.0m (£0.7m as at 31st
March 2015). The total Reserves balance at the end of the year stands at £22.7m of which £20.2m is committed.
A full review of reserves was under taken as part of the 2016/2017 – 2019/2020 Medium Term Financial Forecast
and budget setting process and was reported to and approved by Fire Authority in February 2016.
The Capital Financing Deferral Reserve consists principally of prior year underspends, after providing for a
transfer to the Vehicle Replacement Fund in each year. The Closing Balance is £15.3m. Future Capital Grant
awards and Transformation Funding opportunities remain uncertain. The Reserve will be essential in supporting
the Capital Programme, the Authority’s commitment to longer term planning, and the future development of the
Service, including alternative training provision and fire service headquarters requirements.
The TriControl and New Dimensions Reserve is established to fund expenditure associated with the TriControl
project delivery, FireLink and New Dimension commitments. The TriControl project is a joint project with
Leicestershire Fire Authority and Nottinghamshire Fire Authority to replace all 3 control centres using common IT
software to improve resilience. Any remaining balance on this Reserve upon completion of the project will be
transferred to support the Emergency Services Mobile Communication Project (ESMCP). Transition from Airwave
to the Emergency Services Network is expected to start in December 2017, with a Regional Programme Manager
having been appointed.
The Strategic Reserve is set aside to support unplanned expenditure arising from a wide range of corporate risk
and business continuity matters, encompassing items such as staffing (including strike cover), legal challenge,
technology and asset management.
The Invest to Save Reserve provides funding to deliver structural change and pump prime projects which require
investment to deliver savings in the longer term. The reserve also provides for service and delivery improvements
and is also in place to cover future delays or shortfalls in meeting savings targets.
The increase in the level of reserves will be essential in meeting the Authority’s future financial challenges and
will support the Authority’s plans to deliver its services differently. This reflects the Authority’s commitment to
longer-term planning and is consistent with the current review of the Authority’s Capital Programme. Continuing
investment in a new fire service headquarters and alternative training provision will affect the level of reserves
held in the medium term.
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10.

Pension Fund (IAS 19)

An independent actuary has assessed the liabilities for pension schemes in which the Authority participates,
namely the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes and the Local Government Pension Scheme. The Balance Sheet
includes this pension liability of £383.2m (£427.0m in 2015/2016), of which £374.6m relates to the unfunded
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme. The inclusion of this amount is an indication that the Authority has not paid into a
fund, nor set aside, amounts to fully discharge expected future pension costs at current valuations. Although the
accounts include the full pension liability, it is actually incurred over many years, not in one financial year. It does
not affect the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern as it refers to future liabilities which will be met by
future contributions. A more detailed analysis of the Authority’s pension liability can be found in Note 37.
11.

Future Outlook

The Authority has set a balanced budget for 2016/2017 and the ‘Fit to Respond Service Plan 2014/2017’ sets out
the Service’s priorities for the next two years. In updating its Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Authority
continues to monitor and assess the sensitivities and impact of proposed changes in funding mechanisms,
national and regional projects and opportunities for partnership working. The Authority continues to plan for
challenges presented through the potential impacts of Local Government Reform. Local and national initiatives
include the transfer from DCLG to the Home Office, business rates pooling, the continuing effects of Business
Rate Retention, the Localisation of Council Tax, the introduction of a new Emergency Services Communication
system, changes in pension related legislation, and uncertainty over future capital funding and funding formulas
for the Fire and Rescue Service.
Autumn Statement 2015
The local government settlement announcement contained within it some significant changes; an easing in the
pace of cuts, a change in the way cuts are allocated (according to reliance on government grant), and assumed
council tax increases. The government eased the pace of fiscal tightening in the short term, increasing 2016/2017
spending on public services, capital investment and welfare comparatively.
The Medium Term Financial Forecast reported to Members in February 2016 was established on this basis and
assumed a further 23% reduction in overall funding over the period 2016/2017 to 2019/2020.
Budget Headlines 2016
The budget did not specify anything directly to do with fire and rescue services.
•

The Office for Budgetary Responsibility commented that ‘the weaker than expected outlook had
blown a £56bn hole in the public finances over the next five years – more than twice the £27bn
improvement that George Osborne was handed in the Autumn Statement.’

•

Further implied cuts of £3.5bn by end of the Parliament – subject to a ‘departmental efficiency
review’ to inform future spending decisions.

•

The Chancellor highlighted that all economic forecasts made by the Office for Budgetary
Responsibility are predicated on the UK remaining part of the European Union.

In the March 2016 budget George Osborne highlighted the need to keep public sector pensions ‘sustainable’. He
stated that reforms made in the last parliament would save over £400bn in the long term and revealed that
unfunded public sector employer pension contributions will increase by an estimated £2bn per annum. It is
recognised that continuing pressures around employer pension contributions will result in substantially increased
costs to the Service in 2019 onwards. The Medium Term Financial Plan will be updated and reported to Members
as the position, and cost implications, become clearer.
On 23rd June, the EU referendum took place and the people of the United Kingdom voted to leave the European
Union. Until exit negotiations are concluded, the UK remains a full member of the European Union and all the
rights and obligations of EU membership remain in force. During this period the Government will continue to
negotiate, implement and apply EU legislation. It will be for the Government, under the new Prime Minister, to
begin negotiations to exit the EU. The outcome of these negotiations will determine what arrangements apply in
relation to EU legislation and funding in future, once the UK has left the EU. This is therefore a non-adjusting post
balance sheet event for which no estimate of its financial effect on Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service can be
made.
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Integrating Police and Fire and Rescue Services
The Policing and Crime Bill introduces a new statutory duty for emergency services to collaborate and the
opportunity for Police and Crime Commissioners to take over the governance of their local fire and rescue service
or potentially even create a single employer of police officers, firefighters and staff. Implications of the transfer
from DCLG to the Home Office remain unclear including any potential funding changes.
In Summary
The financial crisis and associated recession resulted in a sizeable, mostly permanent, increase in borrowing.
The Conservative Government have been relatively explicit about plans for total public spending over the next
parliament. Austerity will continue for the foreseeable future. Further to the announcement of the Authority’s 4
year settlement in December 2015, the Authority continues to model further funding reductions which result in a
budget shortfall of around £2.0m over the period 2016/2017 through to 2019/2020, as set out in more detail in the
Medium Term Financial Forecast 2016/2017 – 2019/2020. This is kept under continual review.
The Service is in a strong position due to its concerted approach to forward planning and its favourable level of
reserves for future investment. It has taken a long term approach to providing a resilient and sustainable Service
through a managed approach to securing savings and to protecting the front line. In focusing on medium and
longer term operational delivery, and strategic financial planning the Service is in a strong financial position and
maintains a firm financial foundation for the future. The Service continues to look to greater collaboration for the
benefit of its community.
The Authority recognises that the longer term financial stability of the Service, and the protection of the
communities it serves, relies upon the delivery of significant future savings through different service delivery
models, collaboration, and focussing our resources on risks and priorities through intelligence led, risk based
decisions. Whilst it is clear that the Authority has the relevant strategic, financial and operational planning skills to
navigate the medium term, future financial and operational success will rely on delivery of significant invest to
save projects and difficult decisions in assessing how we deliver the service in the future.
These accounts were approved by Derbyshire Fire Authority on 29th September 2016. There were no material
events that might affect the statement between the Balance Sheet date and the date of approval.

Signed:
Simon Allsop
The Director of Finance/Treasurer to Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
The Authority's Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:
•

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs.

The Authority has determined The Director of Finance/Treasurer as the officer that;
•

manages its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguards its assets.

•

approves the Statement of Accounts.

The Director of Finance/Treasurer's Responsibilities
The Director of Finance/Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom. The Statement is required to present fairly, the financial position of the
Authority at the accounting date and its Income and Expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2016.
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, The Director of Finance/Treasurer has:
•
selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
•
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
•
complied with the Code of Practice.
The Director of Finance/Treasurer has also:
•
kept proper accounting records which are up-to-date; and
•
taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Derbyshire Fire
and Rescue Authority at 31st March 2016 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2016.

Signed:
Simon Allsop
The Director of Finance/Treasurer to Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority
Date 29/9/16

Signed:
Councillor Stephen Marshall-Clarke
Chair, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority
Date 29/9/16
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2015/16
“The right things are being done, in the right way,
for the right people, in a timely inclusive, open,
honest and accountable manner”
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Content of the Annual Governance Framework
1.
2.
3.
4.

What is an Annual Governance Statement?
Scope of Responsibility
The Purpose of the Governance Framework
The Governance Framework (4.1 – 4.13)
a. Review of Effectiveness
5. Corporate Documents Published as Sources of Assurance
6. Significant Governance Issues

1. What is an Annual Governance Statement?




Explains publicly how an organisation manages its governance and internal control measures
An open and honest account of how an organisation ensures its financial management
systems are adequate and effective
Demonstrates the organisation has a sound system of internal control, assuring utmost
integrity in all its dealing.

Regulation 4 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires Derbyshire Fire &
Rescue Authority to conduct a review at least once a year, and publish a statement by 30 September
along with the Statement of Accounts.
This also acts as our Statement of Assurance under the requirements of the National Framework
2012.

2. Scope of Responsibility


Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority (the Authority) is responsible for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public
money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and
effectively. The Authority also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.



In discharging this overall responsibility, the Authority is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.



The Authority has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government. A copy of the Authority’s code is on our website, www.derbysfire.gov.uk Code of Corporate Governance. This AGS explains how the Authority has
complied with the code and also meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit (England)
Regulations 2011, regulation 4(3).

3. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which the
Authority is directed and controlled, along with its activities through which it accounts to, engages with
and leads its communities. It enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic priorities
and to consider whether those outcomes have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for
money.
The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk to
a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and outcomes and
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the Authority’s policies, aims and outcomes, to evaluate the likelihood and potential
impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
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4. The Governance Framework
The main body of the Authority’s governance framework consists of six core principles, adopted from
the CIPFA/SOLACE framework document ‘Delivering good Governance in Local Government’. These
principles are the foundation to the Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance, which can be
accessed here: Code of Corporate Governance. The governance framework during 2014/15
incorporated, at the highest level, elected Members of the Authority, with sub- committees and
working groups nominated to review and scrutinise specific areas of service performance.
Introduction to the Authority and its Committee Structure.
The roles and responsibilities of the overall Service and its constituent parts in respect of Governance
can be summarised in the following model. The effectiveness of controls and the arrangements to
cover risk diminish the further removed they are from the Services activities.

Risk and Control

1ST Business Operations

> An established risk and control environment

Risk and Control

2nd Oversight functions
Finance, HR, Quality and Risk Management

> Strategic Management
>Policy and procedure setting
Risk and Control
> Functional Oversight
Risk and Control

3rd Interdependent assurance:
Internal Audit, External Audit and other
Independent assurance providers

>Provide independent challenge and assurance

Review of Effectiveness
4.1 Identifying and communicating the Authority’s Vision of its purpose and intended
outcomes for citizens and service users.
Our Vision, Service Priorities and Core Values are based on external drivers and consultation
feedback relating to what local people say matters most to them. The Vision describes the long term
aspirations, with the Service Priorities ensuring the Authority’s resources are focused on reducing risk
to the most vulnerable people in Derbyshire, underpinned by the Core Values that describe the way
the Service and employees will conduct themselves.
The Authority identifies and communicates its Vision, Service Priorities and intended outcomes for the
communities of Derbyshire in a series of strategic plans, including the Integrated Risk Management
Plan, and reports that are updated and published annually on the external website: Corporate Plans.
The Service continues to increase its use of social media tools including Facebook, Twitter, YouTube,
Vine and Audio Boom to communicate key prevention messages to ensure the Vision and Service
Priorities are achieved.
4.2 Reviewing the Authority’s Vision and its implications for the Authority’s governance
arrangements.
The Authority considers it imperative that there are robust arrangements in place for scrutinising the
Vision and so it is reviewed annually as part of the Strategic Planning Cycle. This strengthens the link
between the aspirations of the Vision and the realisation of individual Portfolio objectives and projects
achieved. The Authority scrutinises specific areas of service performance relevant to contributing
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towards the Vision through the Governance and Performance Working Group (GPWG) who meet
quarterly.
Review of portfolio assurances
In 2015/16 the Service introduced a new method of securitising portfolio assurances. This
followed a review of assurances that underpin the AGS process last year as part of the key
theme: ‘layers of assurances' in the Service Plan 2014-17. During the quarterly GPWG
meetings, specific subject matters were discussed that had a change in its process or
informed Members of work that would have an impact on governance arrangements. Subject
matters discussed included:
 The outcome of the Protection Review
 The process for Safeguarding
 Outcome of the Review of Assurance for firefighters.
It gave members the opportunity to scrutinise, ask questions and challenge the process,
ensuring all measures were sufficient and in place.
The Service produces and publishes an Annual Report which highlights key achievements made
against its Vision / Service Priorities in the format of ‘what the Service said it would do’, followed by
‘what it did and how it actually performed’. The constitutional framework that determines how Authority
Members deliver good governance is reviewed annually by the Solicitor/Monitoring Officer and
subsequently approved by the full Authority with the effectiveness of internal control considered
annually by the Director of Finance/ Treasurer.
Six Service Core Values introduced
In December 2015, the Authority approved the introduction of six core values that underpin the
national core values already in place. They were created by our employees setting out the
attitudes, behaviours and culture which we expect of everyone working for and on behalf of
Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service.
4.3 Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in accordance
with the Authority’s objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.
External Customer Satisfaction Reports Carried Out in 2015/16
The Service recognises the importance of ensuring the quality of its services meets the needs and
requirements of our communities. To this end, the Service provides an opportunity for customers to
complete a satisfaction survey depending on the services used.
Below are the current satisfaction surveys with the results for each quarter in 2015/16.
Customer Satisfaction survey

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

After the Incident

83% (28)

100% (16)

83% (17)

93% (13)

Home Safety Check

96% (47)

100% (56)

98% (128)

96% (124)

Business Fire Safety

89% (18)

(0)*

60% (5)

95% (36)

*- The form for Business Fire Safety was under review in Q2 so no results were captured.
Where a customer does not show a level of satisfaction (have not identified satisfied/not satisfied) the
percentage figure drops. Where they have identified a level of non-satisfaction, this is escalated to the
appropriate Group Manager/Lead to follow through and contact the customer direct.
Evaluation of our services
As part of the planning process the Service undertakes evaluations on projects, initiatives and events
they host / are involved in. By doing the evaluation, the Service can consider whether the activity was
effective or not, and help to inform and implement improvements. Recommendations and an action
plan are produced for the responsible owner.
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A robust and auditable evaluation system is essential in deciding where to prioritise resources
especially in light of challenging budgets. In the year 2015/16, the Service conducted several
evaluations including; schools and education packages, hoarding and VARM process, YES scheme
and enforcement visits / fire protection.
Performance Management and Data Quality
To ensure services are delivered in accordance with the Authority’s objectives, performance reports
are scrutinised monthly by the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT), quarterly by GPWG, and biannually
by the full Fire & Rescue Authority.
Performance monitoring is captured through the Service Performance Dashboard which provides 'live'
incident data allowing service managers and Authority Members to make truly informed decisions.
This has increased the level of transparency and scrutiny within the Service.
Further assurances are embedded through the Service Delivery Performance Board,
Area Performance Action Group and Local Performance Action Group. These groups have ownership
and accountability for station performance and how it is managed and monitored. See the diagram
below:
Governance level
Fire & Rescue Authority
Governance & Performance
Working Group (GPWG)

Strategic level
Service Delivery Performance
Board (SDPB)

Area level
Area Performance Action Group
(APAG)

Station level
Local Performance Action
Group(LPAG)
Authority Members have the opportunity and have attended the Service Delivery Performance Board
meetings.
There have been major improvements to capture and analyse performance management information.
The introduction of a balanced scorecard approach to performance management, which will integrate
four key principles:
 Are we demonstrating value for money?
 What must we excel at?
 Can we continue to improve and create value?
 How do our customers see us?
Link to Our Performance
Corporate Risk Management
Corporate risk management is a central role of the SLT and is the process whereby the Service
methodically address the risks attached to its activities. To achieve this, the Service has a dynamic
Corporate Risk Register (CRR) that identifies the threats and opportunities that could impact on its
Service Priorities.
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The management of the CRR is carried out by members of the SLT, with assistance from the Service
Management Group (SMG), and GPWG who regularly review existing and emerging risks and where
appropriate take mitigation action to reduce the level of risk, down to a tolerable level. The
management of corporate risks are held within the Performance Dashboard.
Internal Audit
Financial Management arrangements have been reviewed by internal and external audits and are
embedded. The annual Internal Audit opinion for 2015/16 confirmed ‘an acceptable level of
assurance’ is in place. Active budget monitoring takes place at all levels of the Service and regular
and comprehensive reporting takes place to the full Authority.
The Service has an independent Head of Internal Audit via the Central Midlands Audit Partnership, of
which Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service are a partner, who carry out a schedule of internal audit
activities. A fundamental role of Internal Audit is to provide Members and senior management with
independent assurance on the Authority’s overall control environment, comprising the systems of
governance, risk management, and internal control and to highlight control weaknesses together with
recommendations for improvement.
External Audit
The Authority's accounts are subject to an annual external audit by KPMG.
Significant Audit Risks
These are in relation to the new pension fund, accounting for LLP transactions and the new payroll
system.
‘No significant issues have been identified in respect of these risks’.
4.4 Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, non-executive,
scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation arrangements and protocols for effective
communication.
The roles and responsibilities for the respective functions of the Authority, the Authority’s Principal
Officers, Monitoring Officer and Treasurer, the Scheme of Delegation, Standing Orders, contract
standing orders and financial regulations, together with the protocols for effective communication and
escalation are detailed in the Authority’s Members Handbook 2015 16, which is located on the
website. Arrangements are in place for these matters to be reviewed periodically, with
recommendations made to the Authority for updates or amendments where necessary. During
2015/16, the Service has reviewed the roles and responsibilities of the Authority, Standards
Committee, working groups, Scheme of Delegation and the compliance with the financial regulations,
in line with good practice guidance.
4.5 Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of
behaviour for Members and staff.
The Service has Core Values which detail the Authority’s expectations with respect to standards of
behaviour. Supporting these Core Values, the Authority has in place Codes of Conduct for both its
Members and staff. The Codes of Conduct are supported by a comprehensive framework of
processes and procedures for employees and Members.
Affiliations to professional associations are encouraged, with Members complying with the Local
Government Association’s code of ethics and behavioural standards.
The Authority has a robust zero tolerance strategy in place to eliminate bullying and harassment from
the workplace. This involves strong leadership, Core Values, a comprehensive set of policy
documents, training for employees and a range of active and reactive measures.
The Authority continues to place great emphasis upon the importance of ethical standards of elected
Members. To ensure transparency and ethical standards are maintained, the Monitoring Officer
supplies an Annual Report.
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Also, the Authority has implemented a voluntary Standards Committee,
The Authority has appointed one Independent Person and can use the services of other local
authorities’ Independent Persons if required. A robust constitution, strong ethical standards
framework coupled with appropriate guidance and the independent overview ensure high standards of
conduct by Members (Councillors) on the Authority using an appropriate and measured response to
any issues.
Internal Cultural Survey
As part of the People Strategy, the Service conducted an internal cultural survey during the autumn
2015.
The cultural survey was ‘customer-focused’ and allowed the Service to determine if management and
employees were working towards, and living the organisation’s values and priorities. It’s an insightful
look at understanding the culture and its impact on employee morale.
It was agreed to employ a reputable external organisation to conduct the survey as it would provide:




Anonymity of the respondents
External benchmarking against other FRS’s and organisations
External expertise to implement an engagement programme that delivers
measurable, positive change across the organisation

The survey ran: 28 October – 25 November 2015 on the Service’s intranet system.
There were 481 employees who completed the survey, equivalent to 58%.
From the results, the Service had an ‘engagement score’ of 85% - far exceeding seven other fire and
rescue services the external company had worked with (based over 2011 – 2015). Some key positive
results to questions included:




‘I care about the future of DFRS’ – 97% agreed
‘I understand the need for change at DFRS given the challenges it faces’ – 90% agreed
I believe the health & safety is something DFRS take very seriously’ – 90%

Although the results were incredibly positive, recognition and scrutiny has been given to the areas of
weaknesses identified. Feedback from the survey has been presented to various workshops which
have included a wide range of operational and support staff. An Engagement programme has been
put in place to address these issues and will be monitored.
No significant issues have been raised in 2015/16.
4.6 Reviewing and updating standing orders, standing financial instructions, a scheme of
delegation and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisions are
taken and the processes and controls required to for managing risks.
The Authority has in place a comprehensive set of standing orders, financial regulations and
delegated powers which clearly define how decisions are taken and associated authorisation levels.
These are all subject to annual review.
The Authority delegates powers to the Chief Fire Officer / Chief Executive along with the Director of
Finance/ Treasurer and Solicitor/ Monitoring Officer to ensure the efficient functioning of the Service
utilising a Scheme of Delegation. The scheme complies with the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2011 and details the powers and responsibilities allocated to the main roles within the organisation
and which powers are permitted to be delegated. Scrutiny of the Scheme of Delegation is achieved
through the Annual Governance Statement review and the Authority’s meeting structure.
No significant issues have been raised in 2015/16.
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4.7 Ensuring the Authority’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government (2010).
The Authority complies with the guidance issued by CIPFA entitled ‘Statement on the Role of the
Chief Financial Officer in Public Service Organisations’ which was further supplemented by the
‘Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010)’.
The Director of Finance/ Treasurer monitors the Authority’s compliance with the requirements in the
statement and the current arrangements ensure the Treasurer is able to discharge their
responsibilities to the Authority and influence and advise on key decisions.

During 2015/16 the Authority’s financial management arrangements were subject to an
independent audit conducted by the Central Midlands Audit Partnership.

No significant issues have been raised in 2015/16.
4.8 Undertaking the core functions of an audit committee, as identified in CIPFA’s Audit
Committee – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities.
The Authority’s arrangements for the core functions of an Audit Committee as defined in CIPFA’s
Audit Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities are constituted and discharged through the
Authority’s governance framework, with GPWG acting as the custodians for audit and scrutiny.
Through this framework, the audit and scrutiny of both constitutional and service issues by Members
of the Authority are assured. All key responsibilities are allocated through detailed terms of reference
and annual work programmes for the Authority and each sub-committee and working group. These
can be found in the Members Handbook.
4.9 Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and procedures,
and that expenditure is lawful.
The in-house Solicitor/Monitoring Officer is qualified and annually recertified to practise as a solicitor
and receives national advisory circulars and attends regular law updates to ensure any forthcoming
legislation is identified so that compliance is assured. Continuing Professional Development training
ensures that a ‘best practice’ approach is adopted within the organisation to mitigate against the
corporate risk of legislative change.
The Solicitor/Monitoring Officer has the specific duty to ensure that the Authority, its Officers, and its
elected Members maintain the highest standards of conduct in all they do. The Solicitor/Monitoring
Officer also monitors and reviews the operation of the Authority’s Constitution. This ensures that the
aims and principles of the Constitution are given full effect against matters of interpretation of the
Constitution's Rules and Procedures. Policies and Procedures are also reviewed according to an
agreed regular review mechanism.
The Monitoring Officer has conducted training for Members in relation to carrying out this role
annually. Arrangements for formal reporting to the Authority with respect to the Annual Statement of
Accounts, the Annual Governance Statement, Internal and External Audit, Treasury Management and
the Capital Strategy are built into the annual working group and Authority work programmes. The
Director of Finance/ Treasurer also has specific responsibilities in respect of any unlawful expenditure
covered in the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government
(2010).
No significant issues / non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations have been raised in
2015/16.
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4.10 Whistle-blowing, receiving and investigating complaints.
A Whistle-Blowing Policy is in place, along with a free confidential helpline to support staff. During
2014/15, the Monitoring Officer was responsible for keeping the central record of issues reported
under the policy.
The Service has subscribed to a package with Public Concern at Work, a charity providing
independent and confidential advice to workers who are unsure whether or how to raise a
public interest concern. The Service will also work with the charity to identify where
improvements can be made.
When necessary, the monitoring officer will liaise with the internal/external auditor for further
information.
No whistle-blowing cases have been presented under the Whistle-Blowing Public Interest
Disclosure Policy since 1 April 2015.
Anonymous complaints are shared with the Services internal auditor at Derby City Council.
Human Resource and Legal Services ensures that internal complaints are logged and investigated in
accordance with the service procedure. They assure that all discipline, grievance & complaints under
Dignity at Work Policy are processed in accordance with this policy.
Internal complaints and complaints relating to elected Members are dealt with by the Voluntary
Standards Committee. The Committee have not had to consider any referrals in respect of allegations
of breaches of the Members Code of Conduct during 2015/16. Furthermore there has been no need
for the Solicitor/ Monitoring Officer to make a formal report under Section 5 of the Act. Complaints
and Feedback.
The Solicitor / Monitoring Officer monitors external complaints in accordance with the policy. In
2015/16 18 complaints were received, addressed and subsequently report to the GPWG.
Letters of Appreciation
The Authority also receives a number of letters of appreciation to thank them for the various services
they provide. During 2015/16, 76 letters of appreciation were received.
The Service also received 117 Freedom of Information requests with no significant issues to report.
Charges can be incurred if the request takes longer than 18 hours.
4.11 Identifying the development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training.
Members have elected not to undertake an appraisal specific to the Service. Appraisals are carried
out within their Local Authorities.
Members developed and produced the content of their annual development plan, which was approved
and agreed at the Fire & Rescue Authority in June 2012. Development sessions now take place at the
start of each Authority meeting. These sessions offer updated information and development of
Members in key areas.
Examples include:




The Prudential Code and Treasury Management
Fire Investigation Presentation
Internal audit requirements and assurances relating to governance.

Additionally there is a dedicated member development budget for any additional external training
needs that are identified.
New Chair and Vice-Chair appointed.
In September 2015, a new Chair and Vice Chair were appointed to the Fire & Rescue Authority.
In their role they are provided with support and advice from the Principal Officers, the Director
of Finance/ Treasurer and Solicitor/Monitoring Officer, along with SLT members.
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The Service’s Appraisal System.
The appraisal system was available to all employees and is conducted by their line manager with
standards being monitored and reviewed on a regular basis.
A new Performance Appraisal and Development Review
In 2015, the Service reviewed and changed the current appraisal system, which went live in
January 2015. This was undertaken as part of the People Strategy implementation and also as
feedback from the cultural survey which identified the process as an area of weakness. The
new process now reflects a more balanced approach covering the areas of self-appraisal,
manager’s appraisal, development areas, personal objectives and personal development plan.
Through this system, senior management can identify key objectives to be delivered that
underpin the service priorities. To date the deadline for appraisal completion returns have
been slow, but this will be reviewed prior to September.
4.12 Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of the community and
other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging open consultation.

Data Transparency
The Fire and Rescue Service National Framework 2012 made compliance with the ’Code of
Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data Transparency’ an essential requirement (2.9).
The local Government Transparency Code 2015 reiterates the necessity to publish data held by the
Authority to the public to make it easier for local people to contribute to the local decision-making
process and help shape public services.
The Service has reviewed its compliance with this code and has ensured the requirements are met.
Data Transparency available on our website.
Consultation on the Integrated Risk Management Plan (IRMP) 2016/17
In January 2016, the Service conducted a four week electronic consultation on the IRMP 2016/17. It is
important and integral to the planning cycle to consult with our communities on our strategy. This
ensures the Service informs the communities of its plans to manage risk and sets the direction of the
Service in these austere times.
The questions were based on collaborative and partnership working as this is seen as a vital part of
improving efficiencies, but crucially improving outcomes and providing a better service to the
communities of Derbyshire. In total 55 questionnaire responses were received the results positively
agreed that it was vital to work together with other emergency services/ partners. The responses
were:
1. 96% of respondents (53 people) said they would support the Service in continuing to work in
collaboration or partnership with other emergency services and agencies/ organisations.
2. 96% of respondents (53 people) said they agreed with other emergency services co-locating
on fire stations in Derbyshire.
3. 89% of respondents (49 people) agreed that the Service should continue with the Emergency
First Responder Scheme.
A copy of the final report is available: IRMP 2016/17 Consultation: Final Report.
Consultation on: Change of Duty System at Swadlincote Fire Station.
In May 2015, the Service conducted a consultation with the community of Swadlincote on a proposed
change in duty system at the fire station. The communities were initially informed via a press release
and other social media sites.
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Consultation took place at the ‘Delph’ in Swadlincote on 22 May 2015.In total 137 surveys were
completed.
1. 34% stated they were aware of the changes to shift patterns at Swadlincote station.
2. 30% did not think that the changes in shift pattern would have an effect on them.
3. 68% agreed with the change of duty system at Swadlincote.
Following a trial and the responses received, approval was granted by the Authority to change the
duty system accordingly.
Partnership Register and Toolkit
Portfolios within the Service work in partnership with a range of organisations from the private, public
and third sectors. These partnerships ensure effective and collaborative delivery of all their services
The Service has a Partnership Register and Toolkit in place which acts as a governance mechanism
for the partnerships it is engaged with and these are accessible to all employees.
The Authority has established clear channels of communication with the communities and other
stakeholders at both strategic and local level. The Authority is an accountable strategic partner in the
Derby & Derbyshire Neighbourhood Partnership, Health and Wellbeing Boards in Derbyshire and
Derby City and Derbyshire Safer Community Board to name but a few. There are many more
partnerships within the Service that are available to view: Our Partnerships.
4.13 Incorporating good governance arrangements in respect of partnerships and other group
working as identified by the Audit Commission’s report on the governance of partnerships,
and reflecting these in the authority’s overall governance arrangements.
Derbyshire Police Fire Partnership (DPFP) Limited Liability Partnership (DPFP LLP)
In December 2014 Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority formally approved and committed to the build
of a joint Fire Police Headquarters at Ripley Police HQ. To ensure the smooth governance
arrangements of this partnership a Limited Liability Partnership was formed called DPFP LLP.
The Chair of the Fire Authority is an appointed Chairperson of the LLP and has delegated powers to
act on behalf of the Fire Authority in making decisions regarding the management and business of the
LLP.
The LLP has adopted the financial regulations of DFRS and this ensures that financial decisions are
made in accordance with the agreed protocols and reported to the Authority annually through the
Annual Financial Statement. Budget reporting will continue throughout the financial year and the LLP
accounts will be subject to external audit.
A management board has been formed which sits below the LLP Board and this deals with the day to
day running of the LLP. This operates in accordance with the same delegated powers and reports to
the Board quarterly.
The LLP has developed Terms of Reference and Key Operating Principles which have been
approved by the Authority. These provide guidance on the remit and working practises. A copy of the
LLP Business Plan is available here.

22

Joint Training Centre and Firing Range, Police, Ripley
During 2015/16, initial meetings took place with Derbyshire Police to consider building a new joint
training centre and fire range at Ripley under the DPFP LLP.
Emergency First Responder (EFR) pilot scheme with East Midlands Ambulance Service
(EMAS)
During 2015 the Authority agreed to trial an Emergency First Responder pilot scheme. This formed
part of a regional pilot project, including Nottingham, Leicestershire, Lincolnshire and Humberside fire
and rescue services.
The aim was to provide a professional blue light (24/7) EFR pilot scheme across participating FRSs in
partnership with EMAS on a part cost recovery basis for FRSs.
EMAS has a statutory response obligation to respond to Category ‘Red 1 & Red 2’ medical
emergencies within eight minutes on 75% of occasions.
The Service has provided an Emergency First Response when operational crewing levels permits at
four stations: Buxton, Dronfield, Staveley and Matlock.
This scheme will be governed by the provisions and policies within EMAS and respective Fire &
Rescue Services.
The scheme agreement has been formalised with a Memorandum of Understanding, and signed by all
partners to ensure a common and robust framework is in place to support the scheme.
As part of this project, the Service has linked in with the National Joint Council for Local Government
Association – Fire and Rescue Service.
Tri Service Control Project
The Authority acts as the Accountable body to the Tri Service Control Project with the Director of
Finance/ Treasurer monitoring expenditure on behalf of the three authorities through an agreed
accountable body agreement.
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The in-life governance arrangements for the Tri Control Project are now in place and established.
The technical solution delivers secure communications over the existing TETRA based (Airwave)
network. This network is now due to be replaced through a National programme to a commercially
based 4G network. As part of the East Midland Region, DFRS is expecting to transition onto the new
network from December 2017. DFRS has established local and Regional project management to
implement the change and manage any associated risks caused by the direction given by Central
Government Departments on the network change.
5. Corporate Documents Published as Sources of Assurance
 Integrated Risk Management Plan 2013/16
 Service Plan 2014 17
 Portfolio Statement of Assurances 2015/16
 Annual Report 2014/15
 Strategic Planning Cycle 2015
 Fire Authority Members Handbook 2015/16
 Fire Authority Members Code of Conduct
 Code of Conduct for Employees,
 Code of Corporate Governance
 Protocol on Member/Officer Relations
 Audit Inspection Reports Includes: Statement Of Accounts, Revenue and Capital Budgets,
Annual Audit and Inspection Letter, Public Notifications, Medium Term Financial Strategy
2014/18, Financial Regulations, Scheme of Delegation
 Standards Committee Duties
 Authority Documents

Review of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework
In the summer of 2015, CIPFA and SOLACE drew upon a joint working group to undertake a major
review of the Framework “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government” to ensure that it was
still fit for purpose.
With further funding cuts set to continue, local authorities will need to continue to adapt the way in
which they operate especially in terms of collaboration and partnership working. Whether working with
other public sector bodies, the third sector or private sector providers, local authorities must establish
robust governance arrangements at the outset. These should include a shared view of expected
outcomes supported by effective mechanisms for control and risk management thereby ensuring that
the public purse is properly protected.
The proposal set out by the working group was to use the International Framework: Good
Governance in the Public Sector (CIPFA/IFAC 2014).
The revised Framework developed by the CIPFA/SOLACE joint working group on Good Governance
in Local Government builds on the International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector
(CIPFA/IFAC 2014). The International Framework places sustainable economic, societal and
environmental outcomes as a key focus for governance processes and structures. It emphasises the
importance of considering the longer term and the links between governance and public financial
management – all key considerations for local authorities in today’s climate.
In the spring of 2016, CIPFA produced the new guidelines for producing an Annual Governance
Framework from 2016/17 onwards.
Enabling closer working between Emergency Services – duty to collaborate, Police and Crime
Bill
In January 2016, the government announced the transfer of Fire & Rescue Service Policy from the
Department of Community & Local Government to the Home Office. In addition to this, the
Government went out to consultation on a proposal for ‘Enabling closer working between Emergency
Services’. Following the consultation, amendments have been laid before Parliament which makes
changes to the Police and Crime Bill. This will place a statutory duty upon Emergency Services to
‘keep collaboration under consideration’ – ‘in the interests of effectiveness and efficiency’.
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The Service already has positive and proactive steps to work more closely with emergency services
and there will continue to be a drive to collaborate. An invitation has been offered to the Police and
Crime Commissioner to attend the Authority meetings as outlined in the enabling legislation.
Appropriate governance arrangements for these collaborations are in place.
Transformation Steering Group (TSG)
TSG was formed in February 2014 and is an Authority Member-led group that leads on key change
management in service delivery and focuses on addressing the challenges in the Service. They are a
‘non-decision making’ sounding board who provide scrutiny and explore the details and implications of
subject areas which are presented to them. The full Terms of Reference and defined meeting dates
are now established in the Fire & Rescue Authority Members’ Handbook.
Financial Challenges
During the course of the year, the Authority has dealt with a number of issues listed below and
continues to actively manage these during the next financial year.
The Service has taken comprehensive and timely action to address the severe funding reductions
associated with the Comprehensive Spending Review in 2010. This was managed through our
Effectiveness Programme.
By the end of the 2015/16 financial year the Service will have already saved £7.85m since 2011 and
the reduction in grant for DFRS is equivalent to 53% or £4.4m. It is anticipated that a further £1.6m £2m saving will be required by 2019/20. These savings have been delivered primarily through a
review of corporate budgets and a restructure of our support staff. Further details can be found in the
Fire & Rescue Authority 2015/16 Budget Report .
Business Continuity
All Business Continuity Local Recovery Plans are amended by 01 April each year. This enables a
more robust audit mechanism of plans in date and can be reported by means of a specific
performance indicator.
Organisational Structure
The interim arrangements that were in place in the absent of CFO/CE Frayne remained until the
appointment of the new CFO/CE Terry McDermott in September 2015.
6. Significant Governance Issues
There have been no significant issues raised in 2015/16.
The statement is therefore recommended to the Authority for approval.

Signed…………………………………………………..
Terry McDermott – Chief Fire Officer / Chief Executive of Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service

Signed…………………………………………………..
Councillor Stephen Marshall-Clarke - Chair of Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

Total Usable Reserves
£000

Unusable Reserves
£000

Total Authority Reserves
£000

Balance at 1st April 2014 brought forward
(Surplus) / deficit on provision of services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding
basis under regulations (Note 7)
Net (Increase)/Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8)
(Increase)/Decrease in Year
Balance at 31st March 2015 carried forward

(2,500)
28,892
0
28,892

(16,652)
0
0
0

(1,167)
0
0
0

(20,319)
28,892
0
28,892

327,786
0
19,573
19,573

307,467
28,892
19,573
48,465

(32,694)
(3,802)

0
0

446
446

(32,248)
(3,356)

32,248
51,821

0
48,465

3,802
0
(2,500)

(3,802)
(3,802)
(20,454)

0
446
(721)

0
(3,356)
(23,675)

0
51,821
379,607

0
48,465
355,932

Earmarked General Fund
Reserves
£000

Revised

General Fund Balance
£000

Movement in Reserves during
2014/15

Capital Grants Unapplied
£000

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into
‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.
The (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority’s
services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are
different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting
purposes. The Net (Increase)/ Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves shows the statutory General
Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Authority.

6,861

379,607
0
(54,043)
(54,043)

355,932
6,861
(54,043)
(47,182)

(79)
(79)

(6,695)
166

6,695
(47,348)

0
(47,182)

0
(79)
(800)

(0)
166
(23,509)

0
(47,348)
332,259

(0)
(47,182)
308,750

Total Usable Reserves
£000

Total Authority Reserves
£000

Capital Grants Unapplied
£000

Unusable Reserves
£000

Balance at 1st April 2015 brought forward
(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding
basis under regulations (Note 7)
Net (Increase)/Decrease before Transfers to
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves (Note 8)
(Increase)/Decrease in Year
Balance at 31st March 2016 carried forward

Earmarked General Fund
Reserves
£000

Movement in Reserves during
2015/16

General Fund Balance
£000

The 2014/15 Movement in Reserves statement has been revised to reflect corrections to revaluation
and depreciation figures in the 2014/15 accounts. The amendments affect the CIES figure and
Unusable reserves.

(2,500)
6,861
0
6,861

(20,454)
0
0
0

(721)
0
0
0

(23,675)
6,861

(6,616)
245

0
0

(245)
0
(2,500)

245
245
(20,209)
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The Authority raises taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position
is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
2014/15 – Revised – Note 1

2015/16
Gross
Expenditure
£000

Gross
Income
£000

Net
Expenditure
£000

6,418

(234)

6,184

Fire Fighting and Rescue Operations

34,509

(1,112)

33,397

150

Business Continuity and Emergency
Planning

181

(4)

177

0

957

Corporate and Democratic Core

733

(4)

729

0

0

0

0

0

0

59,187

(1,028)

58,159

41,841

(1,354)

40,487

Gross
Expenditure
£000

Gross
Income
£000

Net
Expenditure
£000

9,900

(210)

9,690

48,178

(816)

47,362

152

(2)

957

Community Fire Safety

Non Distributed Costs

Cost of Services

(29)

Other Operating Expenditure (Note 9)

(6)

17,930

Financing and Investment income and
expenditure (Note 10)

14,893

(47,168)

Taxation and Non Specific Grant
Incomes (Note 11)

(48,513)

28,892

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of
Services

21,098

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension
assets

(53,947)

(1,525)

(Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of
Property, Plant & Equipment

(96)

19,573

Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

(54,043)

48,465

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure

(47,182)

6,861

Note 1 - The 2014/15 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account has been restated to reflect a £0.152m
correction in the depreciation calculation for Property Plant and Equipment. Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure previously reported was £48.617m.
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BALANCE SHEET
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the
Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those
reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves is those that the Authority is not
able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the
assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.
The Balance Sheet for year ending 31 March 2015 has been restated to reflect a £0.152m correction in the
depreciation calculation for Property Plant and Equipment, the value of which was previously £53.966m. There is
a corresponding increase in unusable reserves which was previously £379.759m.
1st April
2014
£000

31st March
2015
£000
Restated

Notes

31st March
2016
£000

12
13
14
32

54,033
5,922
2,059
2,873

71,114
8,541
1,060
0

54,118
7,485
1,358
545

Property, Plant & Equipment
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Investment in Joint Venture

80,715

63,506

Non-Current Assets

255
4,881
0
22,462
0

259
6,222
16,500
7,038
0

Inventories
Short Term Debtors
Short Term Investments
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Assets Held for Sale

27,598

30,019

Current Assets

0
(172)
(679)
(7,095)
(526)

0
(246)
(679)
(6,475)
(490)

Bank Overdraft & Cash
Short Term Provisions
Short Term Borrowing
Short Term Creditors
Deferred Liabilities

(8,472)

(7,890)

Current Liabilities

0
(12,047)
(3,643)
(391,618)

0
(11,368)
(3,153)
(427,046)

Long Term Provisions
Long Term Borrowing
Deferred Liabilities
Net Pension Fund Liability

(407,308)

(441,567)

Non-Current Liabilities

(394,324)

(307,467)

(355,932)

Net Assets

(308,750)

20,319
(327,786)

23,675
(379,607)

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

(307,467)

(355,932)

Total Reserves

64,887
16
17
15
18
19

310
6,895
14,000
5,448
850
27,503

18
21
15
20
34

0
(252)
(679)
(5,703)
(182)
(6,816)

21
15
34
37

8
23

0
(10,689)
(428)
(383,207)

23,509
(332,259)
(308,750)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting
period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating
activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation
and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the
extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash
flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using
the indirect method.

2014/15
£000s
Revised
28,892
(34,763)

Note

2015/16
£000s

(4,793)

Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash
movements:
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services that are investing and financing activities
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

24

(4,755)

19,013

Investing Activities

25

2,633

1,205

Financing Activities

26

3,712

1,078

15,425
(22,463)
(7,038)

6,861
(13,017)
1,401

Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

1,590

18

*The 2014/15 Cashflow has been amended to reflect corrected depreciation and impairment figures.
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(7,038)
(5,448)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Accounting Policies
A) General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2015/2016 financial year and its
financial position at the year-end of 31st March 2016. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of
Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared in
accordance with proper accounting practices. There are no changes to accounting policies in 2015/2016.
These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2015/2016 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2014/2015, supported by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the
revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. All figures in the Statement
have been rounded to the nearest £1,000.
B) Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received. In
particular:
•

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authority transfers the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

•

Income from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority.

•

Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap between the
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

•

Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

•

Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income
and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

•

Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor
or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled,
the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

C) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice
of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.
D) Exceptional items
When items of income and expenditure are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, whether on
the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the Accounts, depending on
how significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s financial performance.
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E) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies, or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by
the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices, or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the
Authority’s financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. Material errors
discovered in prior figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period. Changes have been made to the 2014/15 accounts relating to the revaluation of
assets. Notes have been added to the relevant statements to explain the changes.
F) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of
holding non-current assets during the year:
•

depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

•

revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains
in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off

•

revaluation gains reversing previous losses charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

•

amortisation of intangible non-current assets attributable to the service

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its
overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Authority in
accordance with statutory guidance. This charge is calculated as follows:
•

For capital expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008 or which in the future is supported capital
expenditure, the MRP policy is to set aside a provision equal to 4% of the previous year’s Capital
Financing Requirement.

•

From 1st April 2008 (including 2015/2016) for all unsupported borrowing, excluding finance leases, the
MRP policy uses the Asset Life Method i.e. MRP will be an annual charge based on the estimated life of
the assets. The provision is set aside in the year following the capital expenditure.

•

For any finance leases, the MRP will be the equal to the element of the actual finance lease repayment
that reduces the ongoing balance sheet liability i.e. the principal element of the charge or repayment, in
line with CLG guidance.

Depreciation, revaluation losses, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution
in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.
G) Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable during Employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include such
benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for
current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service
to the Authority.
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year. The
accrual is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in
which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services,
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but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits are charged to
revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an employee’s
employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy, and
are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement when the Authority is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an
employee or group of employees, or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund
Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not
the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement,
appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund
and pensioners, and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.
Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of the Authority are members of four separate pension schemes with defined benefits related to pay
and service. The schemes are as follows:
Uniformed Firefighters – Original 1992 Scheme
On 1st April 2006 the firefighters' pension scheme was changed to a scheme funded by central government
(currently the Home Office). The pension costs charged to the Authority's accounts in respect of scheme
members are equal to the contributions paid to the pension fund for these employees. The 1992 scheme was
only open to those firefighters currently in the scheme as at 31st March 2006 and the employers contribution was
higher than for the new firefighters pension scheme. All contributions are made into a pension fund and equally
the payments to pensioners are paid out of the same fund. This is then balanced by a contribution to or from the
fund by the government each year.
Uniformed Firefighters – 2006 Scheme
On 1st April 2006 a new firefighters' pension scheme was established for new firefighters, retained firefighters and
for uniformed employees carrying out operational duties in the old pension scheme who wished to transfer to the
new scheme. This scheme is also funded by central government and operates in exactly the same way as the old
scheme except for the reduced level of contribution from employees and employers which reflects the different
conditions and benefits of the new scheme.
Uniformed Firefighters – 2015 Scheme
As part of central government pension reform across the public sector, the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (2015)
was created which extended the normal pension age to 60 and changed from a “final salary” to “career average”
scheme as part of a suite of initiatives to make fire pensions more financially sustainable. To support those closer
to retirement and, therefore less able to alter their financial retirement planning, firefighters within 10-14 years of
their normal pension age were wholly or partially protected from transferring to the 2015 scheme.
Other Employees
Other employees, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme,
administered by Derbyshire County Council. The pension costs that are charged to the Authority's accounts in
respect of these employees are equal to the contributions paid to the funded pension scheme for these
employees. Further costs arise in respect of certain pensions paid to retired employees on an unfunded basis.
This scheme is, however, funded.
Pension costs are included in the accounts to meet the requirements of IAS 19 which requires the Authority to
see beyond its commitment to pay contributions to the pension fund and to determine the full longer-term effect
that the award of retirement benefits in any year has had on the Authority's financial position.
H) The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
•

The liabilities of the Derbyshire pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments
that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions
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about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of future earnings for current
employees.
•

The value of the pension liabilities is calculated by discounting the expected future benefit payments for
the period between the expected date of payment and the date at which they are being valued. This is
so that a valid comparison can be made with the value of the Fund’s existing assets, allowing the asset
coverage on the valuation date to be measured. When the valuation date is moved on one year, one
year’s worth of the discount ‘unwinds’ as the benefit payments are one year closer, and the result is an
increase in the value placed on the liabilities of one year’s ‘interest’ (based on the discount rate in force
at the start of the year).

•

The assets of Derbyshire pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the Balance Sheet at
their fair value:

•



quoted securities – bid value



unquoted securities – professional estimate



unitised securities – bid value



property – market value

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:


Current service cost – the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period.



Past service cost – the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for
employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment (the introduction or
withdrawal of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (a significant reduction by
the entity in the number of employees covered by the plan).



Gains or losses on settlements and curtailments – the result of actions to relieve the Authority
of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of
employees – debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs.



Net Interest – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time. This includes allowance for interest on the current service cost. The
2012/13 accounts have been restated in order that this category includes interest income
previously classified as Expected Return on Assets in line with IAS19 requirements.



Actuarial gains and losses (Re-measurements) – changes in the net pensions liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – debited to the Pensions Reserve.
The 2012/13 accounts have been restated in accordance with IAS19 - this category includes
Expected Returns on Assets (which were previously separately identified) excluding those
amounts now included in Net Interest.



Contributions paid to the Derbyshire pension fund – cash paid as employer’s contributions to
the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the
amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount
calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means
that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits
on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.
Discretionary Benefits
The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the
year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.
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I) Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of
events can be identified:
•

Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Statement
of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events.

•

Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the Statement of Accounts
are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect,
disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.
J) Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities (including Creditors and borrowing costs).
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.
This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued
interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable
for the year according to the loan agreement.
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year of repurchase or settlement where applicable. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a
restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium
or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new modified loan and the writedown to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an
adjustment to the effective interest rate.
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread of future years. The Authority has a
policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was
payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General fund Balance is managed by a
transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustments Account.
During the year ended 31st March 2016 the Authority rescheduled the majority of its finance leases.
restructuring of Public Works Loans Board loans has taken place.

No

Financial Assets (including Debtors).
The Authority only has one type of financial asset: loans and receivables. These are assets that have fixed or
determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. This means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest), and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the relevant service or
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. It is policy to
charge 12 months interest to each financial year. Outstanding interest is not accrued to the total of the loan.
K) Government Grants and Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that:
•

the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments;

•

the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations
that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant
or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the
Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant
service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring
fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital
Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund
capital expenditure.
L) Intangible Assets
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the Authority as a
result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or
service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an
intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be
impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation and impairment losses are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance.
The losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.
M) Inventories
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
N) Investment Property
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The definition
is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held
for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which
the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-length. Properties are not depreciated but
are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are
posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. Investment properties
were revalued during the year by Alan Orme MRICS, a chartered surveyor from Derbyshire County Council’s
Property Services Division.

35

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment Income line
and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.
O) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification.
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment
are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific
assets.
The Authority as Lessee
Finance Leases
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry
into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:
•

A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to write down the
lease liability.

•

A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the
asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the Authority at the end of the
lease period).
The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses
arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the deemed
capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment
losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.
Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on
a straight-line basis over the life of the lease even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a
rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).
The Authority as Lessor
Operating Leases
Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset is
retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of
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the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of
the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
P) Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or service in
accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 2011/12 (SeRCOP). The
total absorption costing principle is used – the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between
users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of:
•

Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the Authority’s status as a multifunctional, democratic
organisation.

•

Non Distributed Costs – the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and
impairment losses chargeable on Assets Held for Sale.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net Cost of Services.
Q) Property, Plant and Equipment
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one financial
year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The Authority has a deminimus level for capital spend of £10,000, so expenditure below this level will not be recorded as capital spend.
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service
potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.
The Authority does not own any Heritage Assets.
Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
•

the purchase price

•

any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not
have commercial substance (ie it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Authority). In the latter case,
where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given
up by the Authority.
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any consideration paid
is credited to the Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the
gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Assets are carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
•

investment properties and assets surplus to requirements – market value;

•

infrastructure, community assets, specialist operational properties and assets under construction –
depreciated historical cost;

•

all other assets – fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use
(existing use value – EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset, depreciated
replacement cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value.
Where non-property assets have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost basis is
used as a proxy for fair value.
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying
amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Land
and Building values used in the Accounts are based on a valuation carried out by Derbyshire County Council’s
Chartered Valuation Surveyor Alan Orme MRICS as at 1st April 2014 and are in accordance with guidance from
the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors and from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.
Asset values are included in the Asset Register at their component levels. The Authority has a de-minimus
threshold for componentisation which is a net book value (current valuation less depreciation) of £200,000. Below
this amount individual assets will be disregarded for componentisation purposes.
An example of
componentisation might be that a Fire Station might be listed as land, station building, training block, Breathing
Apparatus training buildings etc. Components could also take the form of the roof, fixtures and fittings, lift or
windows should their value exceed the de-minimus level.
Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Where
decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for:
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

•

Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal
implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.
Impairment
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised
for the shortfall.
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for:
•

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains).

•

Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of
the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for
depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

38

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of their
depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful
life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets
under construction).
Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:
•

dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as estimated by
the valuer

•

vehicles – straight-line allocation over the estimated life of the vehicle

•

plant and equipment (for capitalised finance leases) – over the life of the finance lease

•

IT equipment – straight-line over 5 years

•

Furniture – straight-line over 10 years

•

infrastructure – straight-line allocation over 40 years

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical
cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.
It is the Authority’s policy not to charge depreciation in the year of acquisition but a full year’s charge is made in
the final year.
R) Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are
recognised only up to the amount of any losses previously recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to noncurrent assets and valued at the lower of their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell, and their
carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale.
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts
from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts.
Receipts are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or
set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing requirement). Receipts are
appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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S) Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive obligation
that it is probable will require settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court
case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or payment of compensation.
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the
best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertainties.
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year – where it becomes less than probable that a transfer
of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is
reversed and credited back to the relevant service.
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another party
(eg from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the authority settles the obligation.
T) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts.
U) Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Authority.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is
probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.
V) Reserves
The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in
that year to be charged against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial instruments,
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority – these reserves are
explained in the relevant policies.
W) Interests in Companies and Other Entities
The Authority has a material interest in a joint venture with Derbyshire Constabulary, Derbyshire Police Fire
Partnership, Limited Liability Partnership. In the Authority’s own single-entity accounts, the interests in the joint
venture are recorded as financial assets at cost.
X) VAT
VAT paid is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs. VAT received is excluded from income.
Y) Cashflow Statement
The cashflow statement has been prepared using the ‘Indirect Method’.
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Z) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that does not result in
the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Authority has determined to meet the
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves
Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.
2. Accounting Standards Issued but not yet adopted
The Code of Practice requires the disclosure of the impact of an accounting change arising from a new
accounting standard which has been issued but not adopted by the Code for the relevant financial year.
There are a number of new standards introduced in the 2016/17 Code of Practice:
Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits
Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets
Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle:
-IFRS 3 Business Combinations
-IFRS 8 Operating Segments
-IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
-IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
-IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
-IAS 38 Intangible Assets
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle:
-IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Changes to the format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves
Statement and the introduction of the new Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Changes to the format of the Pension Fund Account and the Pension Net Assets Statement
These changes will apply from 1st April 2016 and are adopted by the Authority from this date. None of these
changes would impact significantly on the Authority's accounts for 2015/2016, with the exception of the format
changes, where the 2015/2016 comparative information reported in the 2016/2017 Statement of Accounts will
appear in a different format to that in the 2015/2016 Accounts.
3. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Authority has had to make certain judgements about
complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. There is a high degree of uncertainty
about future levels of funding for local government. However, the Authority has determined that this uncertainty is
not sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the Authority might be impaired as a result of a need to
reduce levels of service provision.
4. Material differences between restated 2014/2015 accounts and those published in the 2015/2016
financial statements.
The 2014/15 accounts have been amended to reflect prior period adjustments mostly relating to depreciation and
valuation movements during the year which were discovered during a cleansing exercise to the Authority’s Asset
Register. Material corrections were made to correct prior year valuation figures (£611k downward valuation
correction and £1.5m correction to revaluation reserve and impairments). A £152k depreciation correction has
been made and £307k amendment in the CIES where the amortisation of the revaluation reserve was incorrectly
shown in the original accounts. These adjustments are reflected in the Balance Sheet, CIES, Revaluation
Reserve and Capital Adjustment Account.
The 2014/15 cashflow has also been revised to correct an error in the workings.
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5. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
Pensions Liability Uncertainties
The results of any actuarial calculation are inherently uncertain because of the assumptions which must be
made. Actuarial assumptions are used to select a single scenario from the range of possibilities. The results of
that single scenario are included in the pension calculations. However, the future is uncertain and the actual
experience will differ from those assumptions; these differences may be significant or material. In addition,
different assumptions or scenarios may also be within the reasonable range and results based on those
assumptions would be different. Actuarial assumptions may also be changed from one valuation to the next
because of mandated requirements, fund experience, changes in expectations about the future and other factors.
A sensitivity analysis was conducted by both actuaries employed by the Authority to calculate its outstanding
pension assets and liabilities. The results of this analysis are included in Note 38.
6. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
On 23rd June, the EU referendum took place and the people of the United Kingdom voted to leave the European
Union. Until exit negotiations are concluded, the UK remains a full member of the European Union and the rights
and obligations of EU membership remain in force. During this period the Government will continue to negotiate,
implement and apply EU legislation. It will be for the Government, under the new Prime Minister, to begin
negotiations to exit the EU. The outcome of these negotiations will determine what arrangements apply in relation
to EU legislation and funding in future, once the UK has left the EU. This is therefore a non-adjusting event for
which no estimate of its financial effect on Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service can be made.
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Finance on 30 June 2016. Events taking
place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this
date provided information about conditions existing at 31st March 2016, the figures in the financial statements and
notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
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7. Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.

(4,193)

0

4,193

(2,991)

0

2,991

(16,967)

0

16,967

348

0

(348)

(26)

0

26

(713)

0

713

Amortisation of intangible assets

(230)

0

230

(181)

0

181

Capital grants and contributions applied

1,496

0

(1,496)

1,316

0

(1,316)

29

0

(29)

6

0

(6)

(19,891)

0

19,891

(2,215)

0

2,215

1,205

0

(1,205)

3,712

0

(3,712)

613

0

(613)

2,024

0

(2,024)

1,818

0

(1,818)

5,736

0

(5,736)

0

0

0

481

(481)

0

(446)
(446)

446
446

0
0

(402)
79

402
(79)

0
0

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

General Fund
Balance
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

2015/16
Usable reserves

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

General Fund
Balance
£000

2014/15
Usable reserves
Restated

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets
Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements in the fair value of Investment Properties

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement
Sub total
Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment
Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account:
Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to Capital Adjustment Account
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:
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Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

2015/16
Usable reserves

General Fund
Balance
£000

Movement in
Usable
Reserves
£000

Capital Grants
unapplied
£000

General Fund
Balance
£000

2014/15
Usable reserves
Restated

(29)

0

29

(6)

0

6

29

0

(29)

6

0

(6)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(27,302)

0

27,302

(23,814)

0

23,814

12,971

0

(12,971)

13,706

0

(13,706)

(14,331)

0

14,331

(10,108)

0

10,108

Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rating income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is
different from council tax and non-domestic rating income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Adjustment primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account:

173

0

(173)

(128)

0

128

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is
different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

(17)

0

17

20

0

(20)

(32,694)

446

32,248

(6,616)

(79)

6,695

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Pensions Reserve:
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year
Sub total
Adjustments primarily involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account:

Total Adjustments
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8. Transfers To/From Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside in Earmarked Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans
and the amounts posted back from Earmarked Reserves to fund expenditure in 2015/2016.
Restated
Balance
at
1st Apr
2014
£000
Earmarked Reserves
Invest To Save Reserve
Strategic Reserve
TriControl and New
Dimensions Reserve
Total

Transfers
Out
2014/15

Transfers
In
2014/15

£000

£000

Balance
at
31st Mar
2015
£000

Transfers
Out
2015/16

Transfers
In
2015/16

£000

£000

Balance
at
31st Mar
2016
£000

13,153
770
849
1,880

0
(237)
0
0

4,039
0
0
0

17,192
533
849
1,880

(164)
(81)
0
0

0
0
0
0

17,028
452
849
1,880

16,652

(237)

4,039

20,454

(245)

0

20,209

9. Other Operating Expenditure
2014/15
£000
(29)

2015/16
£000
(Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets

(6)

10. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2014/15
£000
773
17,166
(112)
103
0
17,930

2015/16
£000
Interest payable and similar charges
Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets
Interest receivable and similar income
Income & expenditure in relation to investment properties and changes in their fair value
Other investment income
Total

951
14,018
(146)
70
0
14,893

11. Taxation and Non Specific Grant Incomes
2014/15
£000
(20,331)
(8,094)
(10,396)
(1,049)
(7,298)
(47,168)

2015/16
£000
Council tax income
Non domestic rates
Non ring-fenced government grants
Capital grants and contributions
Pension top-up grant
Total

(21,050)
(8.363)
(8,610)
(1,395)
(9,095)
(48,513)
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12. Property, Plant and Equipment
Movements on Balances

Cost or Valuation
At 1st April 2015
Additions
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluations increases / (decreases) recognised in the Surplus /
Deficit on the Provision of Services
De-recognition – disposals

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment
£000

Assets Under Construction
£000

Other Land and Buildings
£000

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture &
Equipment
£000

Movements in 2015/2016:

47,678
0

20,843
1,856

347
607

68,868
2,463

95

0

0

95

348

0

0

348

0

(21)

0

(21)

0
77
(421)

0
0
0

0
(77)
(140)

0
0
(561)

47,777

22,678

737

71,192

At 1st April 2015
Depreciation charge
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
De-recognition – disposals

(1,738)
(1,640)
421

(13,012)
(1,211)

0
0
140

(14,750)
(2,851)
561

0

0

0

0

0

0

(140)

(140)

0

21

0

21

At 31st March 2016

(2,957)

(14,202)

0

(17,159)

At 31st March 2016

44,820

8,476

737

54,033

At 31st March 2015

45,940

7,831

347

54,118

De-recognition – other
Assets reclassified – from AUC
Other movements in cost or valuation
At 31st March 2016
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Net Book Value
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Cost or Valuation
At 1st April 2014
Additions
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the Revaluation
Reserve
Revaluations increases / (decreases) recognised in the Surplus /
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition – disposals
Derecognition – other
Assets reclassified – from AUC
Other movements in cost or valuation
At 31st March 2015

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment
£000

Assets Under Construction
£000

Other Land and Buildings
£000

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture &
Equipment
£000

Restated Movements in 2014/2015 Note1:

74,700
8

18,143
1,351

477
213

93,320
1,572

1,525

0

0

1,525

(16,967)

0

0

(16,967)

0
0
0
(11,588)

(24)
0
343
1,030

0
0
(343)
0

(24)
0
0
1,030

47,678

20,843

347

68,868

(11,588)
(1,738)
11,588

(10,618)
(1,388)

0
0
0

(22,206)
(3,126)
11,588

0

0

0

0

0

(1,030)

0

(1,030)

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1st April 2014
Depreciation charge
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve
Depreciation written out to the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the
Provision of Services
De-recognition – disposals

0

24

0

24

(1,738)

(13,012)

0

(14,750)

At 31st March 2015

45,940

7,831

347

54,118

At 31st March 2014

63,112

7,525

477

71,114

At 31st March 2015
Net Book Value

Note 1
The 2014/15 Property, Plant and Equipment Note has been restated to reflect a £0.152m correction in the
depreciation calculation for Other Land and Buildings. Their net book value was previously reported as
£45.788m .
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Capital Commitments
As at 31st March 2016, the Authority has entered into a small number of contracts for the construction or
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment. The 2016/2017 commitments amount to £1.939m. Similar
commitments as at 31st March 2015 were £2.820m.
Revaluations
The Authority has carried out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
required to be measured at fair value is re-valued at least every five years. This has previously been achieved by
undertaking a full valuation every 5 years. The Authority undertook a full revaluation exercise during 2014/15
which resulted in a significant downward valuation in the Authority’s land (£13m). From 2015/16 20% of PPE will
be valued each year in order to prevent large changes every 5th year.
Annual valuations are required under the Code of Practice for investment properties and these were undertaken
as at 1 April 2015.
All valuations are carried out by Alan Orme MRICS, a Chartered Valuation Surveyor from Derbyshire County
Council’s Property Services Division. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out in accordance with the
methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors.

13. Investment Properties
The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
2014/15
£000

2015/16
£000
0

Rental income from investment property

0

(77)

Direct operating expenses arising from investment property

(70)

(77)

Net gain/(loss)

(70)

The Authority’s investment properties are houses situated on stations for the use of fire fighters.
There are no restrictions on the Authority’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the
Authority’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Authority acts as lessor for these
properties. The Authority has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or
to carry out repairs, maintenance or enhancement.
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:
2014/15
£000
8,541
(26)
0
(1,030)
7,485

2015/16
£000
7,485

Balance at start of the year
Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments

(713)

Reclassification to Assets Held For Sale

(850)

Transfer Telecom Masts to Vehicle, Plant, Furniture & Equipment
Balance at the end of the year

(0)
5,922
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14. Intangible Assets
The Authority accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is not an integral part
of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment. The
intangible assets include only purchased licenses.
All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is expected to be of
use to the Authority. The useful life assigned to the software suites used by the Authority is five years.
The carrying amount of intangible assets is amortised on a straight-line basis. It is not possible to quantify exactly
how much of the amortisation is attributable to each service heading; therefore the amortisation of £181,384
charged to revenue in 2015/2016 was absorbed as an overhead across all the service headings in the Cost of
Services.
The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:
2014/15
£000

2015/16
£000

Balance at start of year:
- Gross carrying amounts

1,760

2,325

- Accumulated amortisation

(700)

(967)

Net carrying amount at start of year

1,060

1,358

- Purchases

564

883

Impairment losses recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

(36)

0

Amortisation for the period

(230)

(181)

Net carrying amount at end of year

1,358

2,059

Additions:

Comprising:
Gross carrying amounts

2,324

3,207

Accumulated amortisation

(966)

(1,148)

Net carrying amount at end of year

1,358

2,059

Note 1
£0.377m of the net carrying amount relates to licensing and software for the New Headquarters. The
remaining amortisation period is 5 years.
£1.427m of the net carrying amount relates to the East Midlands Tri Control system joint project,
which is due to complete in 2016-17 and will be amortised over the subsequent 5 years.
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15. Financial Instruments
Categories of Financial Instruments
The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet:
Long-Term
st

Current

st

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2016
£000

st

31 March
2015
£000

31st March
2016
£000

Investments
Loans and receivables
Total Investments

0
0

0
0

16,500
16,500

14,000
14,000

Debtors
Financial assets carried at contract amounts
Total included in Debtors

0
0

0
0

1,001
1,001

1,077
1,077

(11,368)
(11,368)

(10,689)
(10,689)

(679)
(679)

(679)
(679)

3,153
3,153

428
428

489
489

182
182

0
0

0
0

(4,010)
(4,010)

(3,440)
(3,440)

Borrowings
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Total included in borrowings
Other Long-term liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Total other long-term liabilities
Creditors
Financial liabilities carried at contract amounts
Total creditors

The only gains and losses linked to financial instruments are income receivable from short term investments and
interest payable on Public Work Loan Board (PWLB) loans. Quantitative disclosures have been included on the
face of the Income and Expenditure account. The analysis of financial instruments above includes amounts
relating to non-statutory debtor and creditor balances due in less than one year.
Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

Interest Expense
Total expense in Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision
of Services
Interest income
Total income in (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Net gain/(loss) for the year

Total
£000

Financial Liabilities:
measured at amortised
cost
£000
Financial Assets: Loans
and receivables
£000

2015/16

Total
£000

Financial Assets: Loans
and receivables
£000

Financial Liabilities:
measured at amortised
cost
£000

2014/15

773
773

0
0

773
773

951
951

0
0

951
951

0
0

(112)
(112)

(112)
(112)

0
0

(146)
(146)

(146)
(146)

773

(112)

661

951

(146)

805

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities
Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and creditors
are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present
value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments.
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The fair values of loans, provided by the Public Works Loans Board, are as follows:
31st March 2015
Carrying
amount £000
Financial Liabilities

31st March 2016

Fair value £000

(12,047)

Carrying
amount £000

(14,927)

(11,368)

Fair value £000
(14,207)

Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value.

16. Inventories
31st March
2015
£000
180
71
8
259

31st March
2016
£000
212
82
15
309

Uniforms and clothing
Operational Equipment
Miscellaneous

Total

Total Inventories recognised as an expense during the period 2015/2016 are £124,599.

17. Debtors
31st March
2015
£000
2,504
2,569
1,149
6,222

31st March
2016
£000
2,608
2,479
1,808
6,895

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
Total

18. Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:
31st March
2015
£000
0.4
5.6
7,032
7,038

31st March
2016
£000
0.5
4.5
5,443
5,448

Cash held by the Authority
Bank current accounts
Short-term deposits
Total

19. Assets Held For Sale
31st March
2015
£000
0
0
0
0
0

Balance at start of the year
Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments
Assets newly classified as held for sale
Assets sold in year
Total Assets Held For Sale

31st March
2016
£000
0
0
850
0
850

The assets held for sale are houses at Swadlincote Fire Station which have been empty for some time and are in
the process of being marketed and sold. Assets held for sale are revalued immediately before reclassification
and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value, less disposal costs. Fair value is the open market
value including alternative uses.
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The profit or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount and is recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as a gain or loss on
disposal. Where a non-current asset is sold the amount is credited to income and then transferred to usable
capital receipts in the Balance Sheet where it is available to fund new capital expenditure.
Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale.

20. Creditors
31st March
2015
£000
(510)
(3,719)
(2,246)
(6,475)

31st March
2016
£000
(471)
(2,935)
(2,297)
(5,703)

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals
Total

The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that were paid by the authority within 30 days of
such invoices being received by the Authority was 99.4% during 2015/16 (99.2% in 2014/15). See Narrative
Foreword for further details.

21. Provisions
Provision for
Business Rates
Appeals £000
Balance at 1st April 2015
Additional provisions made in 2015/2016
Unused amounts reversed in 2015/2016
Balance at 31st March 2016

194
58
0
252

Provision for
Construction
Industry
Scheme
Disclosure
52
(52)
0

Total

£’000
246
58
(52)
252

The Provision for Business Rates Appeals was established during 2013/2014 in accordance with changes arising
through Local Government Finance Reform. The provision is adjusted each year in line with notifications received
from billing authorities.
The Provision for Construction Industry Scheme (CIS) Disclosure was established in relation to the voluntary
disclosure of CIS to HMRC. Confirmation has subsequently been received that HMRC will not be pursuing
payment.

22. Contingent Liabilities
The Authority is required to disclose if there are possible obligations which may require payment or a transfer of
economic value. Contingent Liabilities in relation to Pension Schemes are outlined in note 37. There are no other
Contingent Liabilities.

23. Unusable Reserves
31st March 2015
£000
(9,229)
(37,956)
427,046
(397)
144
379,607

31st March 2016
£000
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Adjustment Account
Pensions Reserve
Collection Fund Adjustment Account
Accumulated Absences Account
Total Unusable Reserves
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(9,052)
(41,750)
383,207
(270)
124
332,259

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated
gains are:


revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost;



used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or



disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1st April 2007, the date that the Reserve was
created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment
Account.
2014/15
£000
(7,970)
(1,525)
0
0
265
(9,230)

2015/16
£000
(9,230)
(96)
0
0
274
(9,052)

Balance at 1st April
Downward (Upward) revaluation of assets
Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation
Accumulated gains on assets sold
Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment Account
Balance at 31st March

Capital Adjustment Account
The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or
enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to
convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the
Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.
The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
assets that have yet to be consumed by the Authority.
The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1st April
2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
Note 7 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the
Revaluation Reserve.
Capital Adjustment Account
2014/15
£000

2014/15
£000
(55,764)

4,192
16,967
230
0
21,389
(264)

2015/16
£000
Balance at 1st April
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
- Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets

2,991

- Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment

(348)

- Amortisation of intangible assets

(37,956)

181

- Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of
the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement

0

Sub total

2,824

Adjusting amounts written out of the revaluation reserve

(273)
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2015/16
£000

21,125

Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in
the year

2,551

Capital financing applied in the year:
- Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital
expenditure

(29)

(6)

(1,496)

- Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital
financing

(1,316)

(1,205)

- Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged
against the General Fund (MRP)

(3,712)

0

- Prior year MRP adjustment

0

(613)

- Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund - 2015/16

(2,024)

0

- Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund – prior yrs

0

(3,343)

Sub total

(7,058)

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

26

713

(3,317)
(37,956)

(6,345)
st

Balance at 31 March

(41,750)

Pensions Reserve
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority
accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits
are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation,
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory
arrangements require that benefits earned are to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to
pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the
Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees
and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding
will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Pension Reserve
2014/15
£000
391,618
21,097
27,302

(12,971)
427,046

2015/16
£000
Balance at 1st April
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year
Balance at 31st March

427,046
(53,947)
23,814

(13,706)
383,207

Collection Fund Adjustment Account
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and
non-domestic rates income (NNDR) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due
from council tax payers and business rates payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across
amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. Changes announced through Local Government Finance
Reform confirmed that, with effect from April 2013, 50% percent of business rates would be kept locally, with 50%
being distributed through the formula grant process. DFRS receives 2% of the local share. The Collection Fund
Adjustment Account includes both Council Tax and NNDR adjustments.
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2014/15
£000
(225)
(173)
(398)

Balance at 1st April
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from council tax and nondomestic rates income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Balance at 31st March

2015/16
£000
(398)
128
(270)

Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement
carried forward at 31st March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is
neutralised by transfers to or from the Account.
2014/15
£000
127
17
144

Balance at 1st April
Amount by which remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the year in
accordance with statutory requirements
Balance at 31st March

2015/16
£000
144
(20)
124

24. Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities
The cash inflows for operating activities include the following items:
2014/15
£000
(100)
773
0

2015/16
£000
(120)
951
0

Interest received
Interest paid
Dividends received

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash movements:
2014/15
£000
(3,127)
(18,033)
(230)
620
1,341
4
(14,331)
(74)
0
(933)
(34,763)

Depreciation
Impairment and Revaluations
Amortisation
(Increase)/Decrease in Creditors
Increase/(Decrease) in Debtors
Increase/(Decrease) in Inventories
Movement in Pension Liability
Contributions (to)/from Provisions
Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale, sold or derecognised
Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services

2015/16
£000
(2,851)
(506)
(181)
772
672
50
(10,108)
(6)
0
(859)
(13,017)

The surplus or deficit on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are investing and
financing activities:
2014/15
£000
1,049
29

Capital Grants credited to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services
Proceeds from sale of the property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets

1,078

2015/16
£000
1,395
6
1,401
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25. Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities
2014/15
£000
3,046
40,500
545
(29)
(24,000)
(1,049)
19,013

2015/16
£000
4,207
15,500
2,327

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments
Investments in Joint Venture
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and
intangible assets
Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments
Other receipts from investing activities
Net cash flows from investing activities

(6)
(18,000)
(1,395)
2,633

26. Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities
2014/15
£000
0
526
679
1,205

2015/16
£000
Cash receipts of short and long term borrowing
Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases
Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing
Net cash flows from financing activities

0
3,033
679
3,712

27. Amounts Reported For Resource Allocation Decisions
The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is that specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP). However, decisions about
resource allocation are taken by the Authority on the basis of budget reports analysed across the Authority.
These reports are prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In
particular:


no charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses in excess of the balance on the Revaluation Reserve and amortisations are charged
to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)



the cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s pensions contributions)
rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year.

Reconciliation to Subjective Analysis
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of Authority’s income and expenditure relate to a
subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

2015/16

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Fees, charges & other service income
Surplus or deficit on associates and joint ventures
Interest and investment income

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Total
£000

(584)

0

0

(584)

(0)

0

0

(0)

(146)

0

0

(146)

Income from council tax

(21,050)

0

19

(21,031)

Government grants and contributions

(17,598)

0

(1,286)

(18,884)

Total Income

(39,378)

0

(1,267)

(40,645)
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2015/16

Employee expenses

26,102

0

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000
10,087

8,796

0

582

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Other service expenses

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Total
£000

36,189
9,378

0

0

3,173

3,173

1,168

0

(3,712)

(2,544)

951

0

0

951

0

0

359

359

37,017

0

10,489

47,506

Transfer to / (from) reserves

0

0

0

0

Capital expenditure funded from revenue

0

0

0

0

(2,361)

0

9,222

6,861

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Minimum Revenue Provision
Interest Payments
(Gain)/ Loss on Revaluation / Disposal of NonCurrent Assets
Total expenditure

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

2014/15

Fees, charges & other service income
Surplus or deficit on associates and joint ventures
Interest and investment income

Total
£000

(421)

0

0

(421)

(0)

0

0

(0)

(112)

0

0

(112)

Income from council tax

(20,331)

0

(173)

(20,504)

Government grants and contributions

(18,993)

0

(1,050)

(20,043)

Total Income

(39,857)

0

(1,223)

(41,080)

Strategic
Leadership
Team
Reports
£000

Amounts
reported to
management
and not in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000

26,141

0

2014/15

Employee expenses
Other service expenses

Amounts not
reported to
management
for decision
making but in
Comprehensive
Income &
Expenditure
£000
14,348

Total
£000

40,489

7,613

0

(293)

7,320

0

0

4,420

4,420

1,205

0

(1,205)

0

776

0

0

776

0

0

16,967

16,967

35,735

0

34,237

69,972

Transfer to / (from) reserves

0

0

0

0

Capital expenditure funded from revenue

0

0

0

0

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Minimum Revenue Provision
Interest Payments
(Gain)/ Loss on Revaluation / Disposal of NonCurrent Assets
Total expenditure
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(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services

(4,122)

0

33,014

28,892

28. Members’ Allowances
The Authority paid the following amounts to Members of the Authority during the year. Details of Members’
allowances are published in accordance with requirements, on the Authority’s website.
2014/15
£000

86
5
91

2015/16
£000
Allowances
Expenses
Total

78
7
85

29. Officers’ Remuneration
The Authority’s employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension
contributions) were paid the following amounts (bands with no employees in either year have been excluded):

Remuneration band

2014/15
Number of employees

2015/16
Number of employees

£50,000 - £54,999
£55,000 - £59,999
£60,000 - £64,999
£65,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £74,999
£75,000 - £79,999
£80,000 - £84,999
£85,000 - £89,999
£95,000 - £99,999
£110,000 - £114,999
£120,000 - £124,999
£130,000 - £134,999
£135,000 - £139,999
£140,000 - £144,999
£145,000 - £149,999
Total

19
3
8
2
1
2
1
2
1
0
0
2
0
1
0
42

14
6
9
3
0
3
1
0
0
1
1
0
1
0
1
40

This table includes the senior employees listed in the tables below.
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Disclosure of Remuneration for Senior Employees
The following table provides details on senior officers’ emoluments greater than £50,000 in 2015/2016.
Salary, Fees
and
Allowances
£

Expense
Allowances
£

Employer’s
Pension
contributions
£

Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive1

145,480

210

31,569

177,259

Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive*

136,527

210

29,215

165,952

Deputy Chief Executive*

120,023

2,823

14,643

137,489

Deputy Chief Fire Officer*

108,876

2,437

20,456

131,769

Director of Finance/Treasurer

77,417

3,775

9,445

90,637

Solicitor/Monitoring Officer

67,772

352

8,268

76,392

Area Manager - New Headquarters*

61,556

4,728

7,510

73,794

2

Area Manager - Response

20,509

1,026

6,555

28,090

Area Manager - Response*

73,110

3,620

14,028

90,758

Area Manager - Corporate Services

73,110

3,723

15,865

92,698

Area Manager - Executive Support*

58,826

2,059

7,177

68,062

Area Manager - Community Safety*

71,818

3,620

16,255

91,693

Area Manager - Learning & Development*

66,263

1,720

12,711

80,694

Post holder information (Post title)

Total
£

Expenses Allowances column includes benefit in kind for works vehicle.
*indicates postholder changed roles during the financial year. Salary shown is for whole of 2015/16.
1 - Authorised Absence throughout the year. Retired 1/5/2016.
2 - Retired 12/7/15

The following table provides details on senior officers’ emoluments greater than £50,000 in 2014/15

Post holder information (Post title)
Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive1

Salary (Incl
fees and
allowances)
£
143,934

Expense
Allowances
£
210

Employer’s
Pension
contributions
£
30,658

Total
£
174,802

Temporary Chief Executive2

127,882

2,460

15,602

145,944

3

27,294

29

3,694

31,017

4

117,867

12,172

25,106

155,145

92,766

3,620

15,425

111,811

Director of Finance/Treasurer

76,167

3,410

9,286

88,863

Solicitor/Monitoring Officer

74,357

702

9,071

84,130

Area Manager – Executive Support

63,194

4,350

7,710

75,254

Area Manager – Response

83,655

3,813

15,434

102,902

Deputy Chief Fire Officer

Deputy Chief Fire Officer

Temporary Assistant Chief Fire Officer5

Area Manager – Corporate Services

81,995

3,679

15,424

101,098

Area Manager – Learning and Development

59,732

1,880

7,287

68,899

Area Manager – Community Safety

78,283

3,620

12,353

94,256

Expenses Allowances column includes benefit in kind for works vehicle.
Salary, Fees and Allowances column includes overtime payments relating to industrial action cover.

1 – Suspended 1/4/14 – 5/2/15. Authorised Absence 6/2/15 – 31/3/15.
2 – Temporarily promoted on 1/5/14 under interim management arrangements. Post holder held position of Deputy Chief
Executive prior to this. Amounts shown are for the entire financial year 2014/2015 and as such represent part year salary in
each post.
3 – Retired 21/5/14.
4 – Joined 14/4/14. Expenses column includes relocation expenses.
5 - Temporarily promoted on 1/5/14 under interim management arrangements. Area Manager Community Safety prior to this.
Amounts shown are for all of 2014/2015.
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30. External Audit Costs
The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of
grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors.
2014/15
£000

2015/16
£000

44
0
0
20
64

Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by the
appointed auditor for the year
Additional fee in respect of the 2014/2015 audit
Fees payable to external auditors for the certification of grant claims and returns for the
year
Fees payable in respect of other services provided by external auditors during the year
Total

33
1
0
2
36

31. Grant Income
The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in 2015/2016:
2014/15
£000

2015/16
£000
Credited to Services

(160)
(86)
(102)
(88)
(47)
(5.2)
(2.6)
(0.2)
(0.8)
(15)
(0)
(6.2)
(6.4)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(8)
(5)
(3.5)
(2.5)
(1)
(0.5)
(0.1)

Department of Community & Local Government - FireLink Grant
Department of Community & Local Government - Business Rates 2% Inflation Cap
Department of Community & Local Government - Small Business Rates Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - New Dimensions
Department of Community & Local Government - Retail Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - Transparency Code set up
Department of Community & Local Government - Reoccupation Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - Empty New Build Relief
Department of Community & Local Government - Small Business Rates Relief on 2nd properties
Department of Community & Local Government - Business Rates Reconciliation Grant
Derby City Council – Contribution to support YES project
Derbyshire County Council - Contribution to Young Driver Education Package
Derbyshire County Council - Contribution to Dying2Drive Event
High Peak Borough Council/Derbyshire Dales - Healthy Homes Funding
Chief Fire Officers Association - Subsidy for Better Regulation Delivery Office Masterclass
Better Regulation Delivery Office - Subsidy for Better Regulation Delivery Office Masterclass
Manchester Airport Group - East Midlands Community Fund
Arena Group – Donation
Youth United – Grant for Fire Cadet Units
South Derbyshire District Council - Public Health Locality Grant-Fire Cadets Project
Chief Fire Officers Association - Swadlincote Cadets Grant
South Derbyshire District Council - Safer Neighbourhoods Community Funding
Derby City Council - Contribution to support ongoing partnership activity
Toyota - Firesafe Scheme Donation
Mr & Mrs Teager – Donation

(151)
(121)
(109)
(88)
(49)
(8)
(0.6)
(0.2)
(0.2)
(0)
(6)
(5)
(4)
(3.5)
(0.8)
(0.8)
(0.7)
(0.2)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)
(0)

(540)

Total

(548)
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32. Related Parties
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have
the potential to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of
these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the Authority might have been constrained in its
ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely
with the Authority.
Central Government
Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority – it is responsible for
providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the
form of grants, and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g.
council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from government departments as at 31st March 2016 are set
out in the subjective analysis in Note 27 on Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions.
Members
Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority’s financial and operating policies. During
2015/2016 the Authority was made up of 12 Members from Derbyshire County Council and 4 Members from
Derby City Council. During the financial year 2015/2016 the following transactions were entered into between
Derbyshire County Council - expenditure of £0.2m (of which £0.1m was unpaid as at 31st March 2016) and
income of £0.2m (of which £4,135 was owing as at 31st March 2016). During 2015/2016 the following
transactions were entered into between the Authority and Derby City Council - expenditure of £0.3m (of which
£0.02m was unpaid as at 31st March 2016) and income of £6,420 (none of which was owing as at 31st March
2016).

Other payments are illustrated below and comprise predominantly of Business Rate charges, subscriptions
(LGA), payments in relation to trade waste contracts, and other contracted services.
Organisation

Payment to
£
174,957
107,374
156,969
35,486
25,816
19,672
12,346

Chesterfield Borough Council
Amber Valley Borough Council
High Peak Borough Council
South Derbyshire District Council
Bolsover District Council
North East Derbyshire District Council
Local Government Association
Improvement and Development Agency
for Local Government
Chesterfield Royal Hospital
Unison

Received
from
£
210
3,500

2,082
50
53

Officers
During the financial year 2015/2016 no officers had an interest in an organisation that would have a potential to
control or influence the Authority, or be controlled or influenced by the Authority. (See note below).
Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority
In December 2014 Members of Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority approved the creation of a Limited Liability
Partnership (LLP) between the Fire and Rescue Service, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
(OPCC) and Derbyshire Constabulary which will see the delivery of the Joint Police and Fire Headquarters
project. This enabled the interests of both partners and their Management Board Members to be protected within
a formal partnership agreement with equal voting rights. The Management Board of DPFP LLP comprises eight
Members in total; four from Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service, one from Derbyshire Constabulary, and three
from the OPCC. The Chair of Derbyshire Fire Authority and the PCC (Elected Officials) alternate in sharing the
roles of Vice and Vice Chair of the Board. Payments to DPFP LLP amounted to £2.873m in 2015/2016 which
relate to the Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service share of new headquarters build costs to date.
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33. Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of
assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where
capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority,
the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital
expenditure incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second
part of this note.
2014/15
£000
16,938
2,067
71
(29)
(1,496)
(613)
(1,205)
15,733
(1,205)

(679)
(526)
(1,205)

Opening Capital Financing Requirement
Capital investment
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Sources of finance
Capital receipts
Government grants and other contributions
Sums set aside from revenue
Direct revenue contributions
MRP
Closing Capital Financing Requirement
Movements in Year

2015/16
£000
15,733
2,463
883
(6)
(1,316)
(2,024)
(3,713)
12,020
(3,713)

Explanation of movements in year
Decrease in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by government financial
assistance)
Assets acquired under finance leases/ (finance leases repaid)
Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement

(679)
(3,034)
(3,713)

34. Leases
Authority as Lessee
Finance Leases
The Authority has acquired a number of its fleet of vehicles under finance leases. The assets acquired under
these leases are carried as Vehicles, Plant and Equipment in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts:
2014/15
£000
3,926
3,926

2015/16
£000
3,362
3,362

Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and Equipment
Total

The Authority is committed to making minimum payments under these leases comprising settlement of the longterm liability for the interest in the property acquired by the Authority and finance costs that will be payable by the
Authority in future years while the liability remains outstanding. The minimum lease payments are made up of the
following amounts:
2014/15
£000
490
3,153
804
4,447

2015/16
£000
Finance lease liabilities (net present value of minimum lease payments):
- current
- non-current
Finance costs payable in future years
Minimum lease payments
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182
428
(38)
572

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:
2014/15
£000
684
2,545
1,218
4,447

Finance Lease Liabilities
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Total

2015/16
£000
180
392
0
572

Operating Leases
The Authority utilises a number of vehicles and buildings under operating lease arrangements. The vehicles
typically have a life of five years and there were two property rents that finished in 2012.
The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:
2014/15
£000
9
7
5
21

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
Total

2015/16
£000
11
7
3
21

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to
these leases was:
2014/15
£000
49
49

2015/16
£000
Minimum lease payments
Total

30
30

35. Impairment Losses
The Authority incurred expenditure of £140,324 in 2015/16 (£1,065,340 in 2014/15) due to the writing off in the
accounts of new headquarters and training centre which is part of the investment in the separate LLP assets.
These costs have been recognised in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. These disclosures are consolidated in Note 12, reconciling the movements
in values of Property, Plant & Equipment, in 2015/16.

36. Termination Benefits
The Authority did not terminate any contracts during 2015/16. The Officers’ Remuneration note (Note 29) shows
the number of exit packages and total cost per band. The 2014/15 equivalents were £41,000 incurred, relating to
5 staff
The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies
are set out in the table below:
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Exit package cost
band (including
special payments)

Number of
compulsory
redundancies
2014/15

£0 - £20,000
£20,001 - £40,000
£40,001 - £60,000
£60,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2015/16
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Number of other
departures agreed

Total number of exit
packages by cost
band

2014/15
4
1
0
0
0
0
5

2014/15
4
1
0
0
0
0
5

2015/16
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2015/16
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total cost of exit
packages in each
band
£000
2014/15
2015/16
16
0
25
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
41
0

37. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes
Participation in Pension Schemes
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes contributions towards the
cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the
Authority has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at the time that
employees earn their future entitlement.
The Authority participates in two post-employment schemes, both of which are defined benefit schemes:
•

The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), for administrative, support and Control employees, is
administered locally by Derbyshire County Council. This is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme,
meaning that the Authority and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to
balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.

•

The Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (FPS). This is split into four parts.
o

The 1992 Firefighters Pension Scheme, which has been closed to new entrants since 6th April
2006. Its members are wholetime firefighters.

o

The 2006 Firefighters Pension Scheme, which has been closed to new entrants from 1st April
2015. Its members are both retained and wholetime firefighters.

o

The Modified Pension Scheme, which was a special pension scheme made available to
retained firefighters who were active after 1st July 2000, following a legal decision relating to the
Part-time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000. It will not
receive any new members.

o

The 2015 Firefighters Pension Scheme, which is currently open for new members and has
received some transfers from the other schemes if certain criteria were met. Its members are
both retained and wholetime firefighters.

All these schemes are unfunded schemes, meaning that there are no investment assets to meet the
cost of pension liabilities and cash has to be generated to meet pension payments as they fall due. The
cost of the scheme is met with contributions paid by employees and the Authority, with any deficit in the
funding required being met by a grant from the Home Office. The scheme is administered on behalf of
Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service by Leicestershire County Council Further details on these schemes
are above in Note 1- Accounting Policies.
The Authority also participates in the Firefighters’ Compensation Scheme. The Firefighters’ Compensation
Scheme (England) Order 2006 makes provision for the payment of pensions, allowances and gratuities to and in
respect of persons who die or are permanently disabled as a result of an injury sustained or disease contracted
while employed by a fire and rescue authority. The level of benefits payable is dependent on the salary, service
and the degree of disablement of the member at the time the injury is incurred. Therefore the level of long term
benefits payable can be both material and volatile. For this reason the Compensation Scheme is treated as an
unfunded defined benefit scheme, and accounted for under International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19), in the
same manner as for the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes. The cost of the Compensation Scheme is met by the
Authority.
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The numerical entries below that refer to the FPS are for all schemes combined unless otherwise stated.
The principal risks to the Authority of the schemes are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the
schemes, structural changes to the schemes (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the schemes), changes to
inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the schemes. These are mitigated to
a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts required by statute as
described in the accounting policies note.
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Authority is
required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of postemployment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement.
The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the
General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year:
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cost of Services
Service cost comprising:
- Current service costs
- Past service costs
- (Gain)/loss on settlements
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
- Net interest expense
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:
- Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net
interest expense)
- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic
assumptions
- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial
assumptions
- Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
retained settlement
- Other (experience)
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement
- reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in accordance
with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance for
pensions in the year:
- employers’ contributions payable to scheme

Local Government
Pension Scheme
2014/15
2015/16
£000
£000
(1,156)
0
0

Firefighters’
Pension Scheme
2014/15
2015/16
£000
£000

(1,536)
0
0

(7,150)
0
0

(6,440)
0
0

(296)

(368)

(16,870)

(13,650)

(1,452)

(1,904)

(24,020)

(20,090)

1,702

(788)

0

0

0

0

39,680

5,760

(5,604)

3,997

(60,130)

34,160

0

0

(6,050)

4,200

225

378

9,080

6,240

(5,129)

1,683

(41,440)

30,270

1,452

1,904

24,020

20,090

(721)

(756)

(2,469)

(2,327)

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit
plans is as follows:
Funded liabilities:
Local Government
Pension Scheme
2014/15
2015/16
£000
£000
36,219
34,251
(25,133)
(25,604)
11,086
8,647
0
0
11,086
8,647

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Sub-total
Other movements in the liability (asset)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

Unfunded Liabilities:
Firefighter Pension
Scheme
2014/15
2015/16
£000
£000
415,960
374,560
0
0
415.960
374,560
0
0
415,960
374,560

The Authority is required to disclose if there are possible obligations which may require payment or a transfer of
economic value.
Firefighters’ Pension Scheme – Contributions Holiday
Firefighters who joined the 1992 Firefighter’s Pension Scheme (FPS) aged 18-20 have previously had to
contribute for up to 32 years to receive a 30 year pension at the earliest age of 50. This is because the FPS has
an accrual cap of 30 years reckonable service. Further to a legal challenge by the FBU, correspondence from
central Government has confirmed that the Secretary of State will allow members meeting certain criteria to take
a contributions holiday. The rules of the 1992 FPS will be amended and applied retrospectively to 1st December
2006, with affected members receiving a refund accordingly. Services await specific guidance from Home Office
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in order to implement this change. The Authority is exposed to some measure of financial risk as a result which
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability at this time.
Pension Transitional Protection Legal Challenge
As part of central government pension reform across the public sector, the Firefighters’ Pension Scheme (2015)
was created which extended the normal pension age to 60 and changed from a “final salary” to “defined benefit”
scheme as part of a suite of initiatives to make fire pensions more financially sustainable. To support those closer
to retirement and, therefore less able to alter their financial retirement planning, firefighters within 10-14 years of
their normal pension age were wholly or partially protected from transferring to the 2015 scheme.
In response, a legal challenge has been raised nationally arguing that such transitional protection discriminates
on the grounds of age, gender and race. The preliminary hearing of the resulting Employment Tribunal is set for
31 May -3 June 2016 with the full hearing expected 9-24 January 2017.
It is felt FRSs and DCLG/Home Office have strong defences in this case but never-the-less, a level of financial
risk exists. Should this Employment Tribunal find in favour of employees, the financial cost cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability. Such cost would be a contingent liability on the pension fund, as opposed to employers
directly. At a future date, a valuation of the fund liabilities including any judgement in respect of this legal
challenge would be assessed nationally, with deficits being addressed by increases to employer and employee
contribution rates.

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets
Funded liabilities:
Local Government Pension
Scheme
2014/15
2015/16
£000
£000
22,081
25,133
957
811

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest income
Remeasurement gain/(loss)
The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest
expense
Other
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Contributions from employer
Contributions from employees into the scheme
Benefits paid
Closing fair value of scheme assets

1,702

(788)

0
0
721
308
(636)
25,133

0
0
756
328
(636)
25,604

The Firefighter Pension Scheme has no assets.
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

Opening balance at 1st April
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by scheme participants
Remeasurements (gains) and losses:
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial
assumptions
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the
retained settlement
Other (Experience gains/losses)
Past service costs
Losses/(gains) on curtailment
Liabilities assumed on entity combinations
Benefits paid
Liabilities extinguished on settlements
Closing balance at 31st March
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Funded liabilities:
Local Government
Pension Scheme
2014/15
2015/16
£000
£000
28,759
36,219
1,156
1,536
1,253
1,179
308
328

Unfunded Liabilities:
Firefighter Pension
Scheme
2014/15
2015/16
£000
£000
384,940
415,960
7,150
6,440
16,870
13,650
1,830
1,820

0

0

(39,680)

(5,760)

5,604

(3,997)

60,130

(34,160)

0

0

6,050

(4,200)

(225)
0
0
0
(636)
0
36,219

(378)
0
0
0
(636)
0
34,251

(9,080)
0
0
0
(12,250)
0
415,960

(6,240)
0
0
0
(12,950)
0
374,560

Breakdown of Firefighters’ Pension Scheme Transactions and Liabilities by Scheme.
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement
Cost of Services
Service cost comprising:
- Current service costs
- Past service costs
- (Gain)/loss on settlements
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
- Net interest expense
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Other Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
comprising:
- Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included
in the net interest expense)
- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in
demographic assumptions
- Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in
financial assumptions
- Changes in assumptions underlying the present value
of the retained settlement
- Other (experience)
Total Post-employment Benefits charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement
- reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services for post-employment
benefits in accordance with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund
Balance for pensions in the year:
- employers’ contributions payable to scheme

1992 Scheme
2014/15
£000

2006 Scheme

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Injury Benefit
Scheme

2015 Scheme

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

Total

2015/16
£000

2014/15
£000

2015/16
£000

(4,890)
0
0

(2,780)
0
0

(1,660)
0
0

(140)
0
0

N/A
N/A
N/A

(2,980)
0
0

(600)
0
0

(540)
0
0

(7,150)
0
0

(6,440)
0
0

(15,080)

(12,430)

(700)

(790)

N/A

(60)

(1,090)

(370)

(16,870)

(13,650)

(19,970)

(15,210)

(2,360)

(930)

N/A

(3,040)

(1,690)

(910)

(24,020)

(20,090)

0

0

0

0

N/A

0

0

0

0

0

20,360

5,310

4,340

270

N/A

50

14,980

130

39,680

5,760

(53,700)

29,110

(5,110)

3,900

N/A

320

(1,320)

830

(60,130)

34,160

0

0

(6,050)

4,200

N/A

0

0

0

(6,050)

4,200

7,450

7,920

390

(1,880)

N/A

260

1,240

(60)

9,080

6,240

(45,860)

27,130

(8,790)

5,560

N/A

(2,410)

13,210

(10)

(41,440)

30,270

19,970

15,210

2,360

930

N/A

3,040

1,690

910

24,020

20,090

(2,009)

(1,044)

(460)

(102)

N/A

(1,181)

0

0

(2,469)

(2,327)
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Pension Assets & Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

1992 Scheme

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Sub-total
Other movements in the liability (asset)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

2014/15
£000
380,940
0
380,940
0
380,940

2006 Scheme

2015/16
£000
342,520
0
342,520
0
342,520

2014/15
£000
24,100
0
24,100
0
24,100

2015/16
£000
18,180
0
18,180
0
18,180

Injury Benefit
Scheme

2015 Scheme
2014/15
£000
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2015/16
£000
3,390
0
3,390
0
3,390

2014/15
£000
10,920
0
10,920
0
10,920

Total

2015/16
£000
10,470
0
10,470
0
10,470

2014/15
£000
415,960
0
415.960
0
415,960

2015/16
£000
374,560
0
374,560
0
374,560

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (Defined Benefit Obligation)

1992 Scheme

Opening balance at 1st April
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions by scheme participants
Remeasurements (gains) and losses:
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in
financial assumptions
Changes in assumptions underlying the present
value of the retained settlement
Other (Experience gains/losses)
Past service costs
Losses/(gains) on curtailment
Liabilities assumed on entity combinations
Benefits paid
Liabilities extinguished on settlements
Closing balance at 31st March

2006 Scheme

Injury Benefit
Scheme

2015 Scheme

Total

2014/15
£000
345,470
4,890
15,080
1,390

2015/16
£000
380,940
2,780
12,430
750

2014/15
£000
14,870
1,660
700
440

2015/16
£000
24,100
140
790
70

2014/15
£000
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2015/16
£000
0
2,980
60
1,000

2014/15
£000
24,600
600
1,090
0

2015/16
£000
10,920
540
370
0

2014/15
£000
384,940
7,150
16,870
1,830

2015/16
£000
415,960
6,440
13,650
1,820

(20,360)

(5,310)

(4,340)

(270)

N/A

(50)

(14,980)

(130)

(39,680)

(5,760)

53,700

(29,110)

5,110

(3,900)

N/A

(320)

1,320

(830)

60,130

(34,160)

0

0

6,050

(4,200)

N/A

0

0

0

6,050

(4,200)

(7,450)

(7,920)

(390)

1,880

(11,780)

(12,040)

380,940

342,520

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

(260)
0
0
0
(20)
0
3,390

(1,240)
0
0
0
(470)
0
10,920

60
0
0
0
(460)
0
10,470

(9,080)
0
0
0
(12,250)
0
415,960

(6,240)
0
0
0
(12,950)
0
374,560

(430)
24,100
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18,180

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by amount and by
proportion of the total assets held:
31st March
2015
£000
Equity investments
Consumer
Manufacturing
Energy and Utilities
Financial Institutions
Health and Care
Information Technology
Other
Sub-total Equity Instruments

31st March
2015
%

31st March
2016
£000

31st March
2016
%

1,990
2,519
1,835
1,953
1,124
505
2,515
12,441

8%
10%
7%
8%
4%
2%
10%
49%

2,105
2,388
1,459
2,008
1,111
715
2,619
12,405

8%
9%
6%
8%
4%
3%
10%
48%

Bonds
Corporate
Government
Other
Sub-total Bonds

1,214
3,066
665
4,945

5%
12%
3%
20%

1,418
2,868
511
4,797

6%
11%
2%
19%

Property
UK
Overseas
Sub-total Property

1,219
0
1,219

5%
0%
5%

1,526
0
1,526

6%
0%
6%

187

1%

452

2%

Investment Funds and Unit Trusts
Equities
Bonds
Infrastructure
Sub-total - Investment Funds and Unit Trusts

4,545
0
201
4,746

18%
0%
1%
19%

4,934
0
440
5,373

19%
0%
2%
21%

Cash and Cash Equivalents

1,595

6%

1,050

4%

25,133

100%

25,604

100%

Private Equity

Total Assets

All scheme assets have quoted prices in active markets with the exception of the following:
Type

Bonds – Corporate
Private Equity
Property – UK
Investment Funds – Equities
Investment Funds – Infrastructure
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total quoted prices not in active markets

31st March
2015
£000s
1,214
64
1,219
152
131
1,595
4,375

31st March
2016
£000s
1,418
105
1,526
69
148
1,050
4,316

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the
pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.
The Firefighter Pension Scheme has been independently assessed by the Government Actuary Department
(GAD), and the Local Government Pension Scheme has been independently assessed by Hymans Robertson.
Estimates for both funds have been based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31st March 2015. The
significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:
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Local Government
Pension Scheme

Mortality assumptions

2014/15
(yrs)
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
- Men
- Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
- Men
- Women

Firefighter Pension
Scheme

2015/16
(yrs)

2014/15
(yrs)

22.0
24.2

22.0
24.2

22.5
22.5

22.3
22.3

24.1
26.6

24.1
26.6

24.8
24.8

24.6
24.6

Local Government
Pension Scheme

Other Actuarial Assumptions

2014/15
%
2.40
3.30
N/A
2.40
3.20

Rate of CPI inflation
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in salaries – short term1
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

2015/16
(yrs)

Firefighter Pension
Scheme

2015/16
%
2.20
3.20
N/A
2.20
3.50

2014/15
%
2.20
4.20
N/A
2.20
3.30

2015/16
%
2.20
4.20
1.00
2.20
3.55

1 GAD have produced a split for rate of increase in salaries for this return based on short term projections from HM Treasury. They have advised
that this assumption is to be used up to 31st March 2020 at which point it will revert to the other rate listed above. There is no equivalent split for
the LGPS.

All Firefighter schemes have the same mortality and actuarial assumptions.
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table
above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption
analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in longevity, for example,
assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have
followed the accounting policies for the scheme i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from
those used in the previous period.
Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Pension Schemes 2015/16

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year)
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or
decrease by 0.5%/yr)
Rate of increase in pensions (increase or
decrease by 0.5%/yr)
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities
(increase or decrease by 0.5%/yr)
Early Retirement (increase or decrease by 1
year)

Local Government Pension
Scheme
Increase in
Decrease in
Assumption
Assumption
£000
£000
1,028
(1,028)
1,429
(1,429)

Firefighter Pension Scheme
Increase in
Assumption
£000
8,800
3,500

Decrease in
Assumption
£000
(8,800)
(3,500)

2,792

(2,792)

30,200

(30,200)

(4,281)

4,281

(37,900)

37,900

N/A

N/A

(400)

400

Impact on the Authority’s Cash Flows
The defined benefit liability shows the underlying commitments that the Authority has in the long run to pay
retirement benefits. The total liability of £383m has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Authority as
recorded in the Balance Sheet, however statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial
position of the Authority remains healthy:
•

The net liability on the Local Government Pension Scheme will be made good by increased
contributions over the remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed
by the scheme actuary. The aims of the Fund are to keep employer contribution rates as constant as
possible. Contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund
required by the Regulations. The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried out as at 31 March
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•
•

2016 and will set contributions for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020. There are no minimum
funding requirements in the LGPS but the long term funding objective is for the Fund to achieve and
then maintain sufficient assets to cover 100% of projected accrued liabilities.
Finance is only required to be raised to cover firefighter pensions when the pensions are actually paid,
and any shortfalls are currently met by the Home Office. Any short term cash flow requirements are
actively managed by the Accountancy department.
Finance is only required to be raised to cover the costs of the firefighters’ compensation scheme when
the pensions are actually paid, and these costs are included in the Authority’s annual budget. The
amount spent in 2015/16 was £736k.

The total contributions expected to be made by the Authority to the Local Government Pension Scheme in the
year to 31 March 2017 is £808k. The total expected contributions for the Firefighters’ Pension Schemes and
Compensation Scheme are £13.6m inclusive of government top-up grant.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for all Local Government Pension Scheme
Members is 21 years. The weighted average durations of the defined benefit obligations of the 1992 FPS, 2006
NFPS, 2015 FPS and the Firefighters’ Compensation Scheme are 20 years.
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Firefighters’ Pension Fund Accounts
Fund Account
2014/15
Total
£000

2015/16
Total
£000

Contributions receivable:
2,469
329
1,860
4,658
0
4,658

9,969
1,923
0
0
64
11,956
7,298
(5,151)
2,147

Fire Authority
- contributions in relation to pensionable pay
- Ill Health Pensions
Firefighters’ contributions

2,327
274
2,796
5,397
0
5,397

Transfers in from other authorities
Total Income to the fund
Benefits payable
- pensions
- commutations and lump sum retirement benefits
- lump sum death benefits
- Gad vs Milne backdated payments
Payments to and on Account of Leavers
- transfers out to other schemes
Total Spending by the fund
Net amount payable for the year
Top-up grant received from the Government
Gad V Milne additional grant received from Government
Balance of top-up grant for the year receivable from /(payable to) Communities
and Local Government

10,267
2,451
17
1,758
0
14,493
9,096
(5,777)
(1,780)
1,539

Net Assets Statement
2014/15
£000
756
2,144
(25)
(2,875)
0

2015/16
£000
Current Assets
Payments in Advance
Top-up receivable from the Government
Current Liabilities
Unpaid Pension Benefits
Amount owing to General Fund
Net Current Assets

896
1,539
(0)
(2,435)
0

38. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Authority’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:


credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Authority.



liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its commitments to
make payments.



market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of changes in such
measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

Risk management is carried under policies approved by the Authority in the annual Treasury Management
Strategy. The Authority provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the investment of surplus cash.
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Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Authority’s
customers.
This risk is minimised through the Treasury Management Strategy, which provides strict criteria for placing
investments with financial institutions. The Treasury Management Strategy was approved by Fire Authority on 18
February 2016 and can be found on the Authority’s website. The key issues within the strategy were:


The Authorised Limit for 2015/16 was set at £17.2m. This is the maximum limit of external borrowings or
other long term liabilities such as finance leases.



The Operational Boundary for 2014/2015 was set at £16.6m. This is the expected maximum level of
debt and other long term liabilities during the year.



The maximum proportions of fixed and variable interest rate exposure were set at 100% and 40%
respectively.

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors regarding inclusion and equality. Individual credit limits are set in accordance with internal ratings in
accordance with parameters set by the Authority.
The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies
cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal
sum will be specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to
be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of irrecoverability applies to all of the Authority’s deposits, but there
was no evidence at the 31st March 2016 that this was likely to crystallise.
The following analysis summarises the Authority’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk, based on recent
experience of default.

Amount at
31st March
2016

Historical
experience
of default

19,448

0.00%

Estimated
Maximum
Exposure to
Credit Risk
31st March
2016
£000
0

513

0.17%

0

£000

Deposits with Banks and Financial Institutions
Customers

Estimated
Maximum
Exposure to
Credit Risk
31st March
2015
£000
0
0

The Authority allows 30 days credit for customers. The age analysis of the customer balance is shown below:
2014/15
£000
1.4
16.8
0.0
0.0
1.7
19.9

Not yet due*
Less than three months
Three to six months
Six months to one year
More than one year
Total

2015/16
£000
501.9
10.7
0.0
0.0
0.1
512.7

*£425k of the amount owed by customers at 31st March 2016 relates to repayment of employee pension contributions as a
result of the Part-time Workers (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000. Some of the staff affected are
repaying their contributions over ten years via direct debit. This note has treated these amounts outstanding as 'not yet due.'
Should an employee default on the repayment the appropriate entry to the pension scheme will also be reversed, so there is no
risk to the Authority from these amounts.
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Liquidity Risk
The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as
needed. If unexpected movements happen, the Authority has ready access to borrowings from the money
markets and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to
meet its commitments under financial instruments. The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:
2014/15
£000
(679)
(679)
(2,037)
(8,652)

Less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
More than five years

2015/16
£000
(679)
(679)
(2,037)
(7,973)

(12,047)

Total

(11,368)

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.
Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk
The Authority is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest
rates would have the following effects:


borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise



borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall



investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services will rise



investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact
on the Surplus of Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.
However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. Movements in the fair
value of fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure.
The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. Policy is to aim to keep a maximum of
40% of its borrowings in variable rate loans. The Authority held no variable rate loans during 2015/16. During
periods of falling interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans will be
reviewed to limit exposure to losses.
There is an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget
and which is used to update the budget quarterly during the year. This allows any adverse changes to be
accommodated. The analysis will also advise whether new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.
According to this assessment strategy, at 31st March 2016, if interest rates had been 1% higher with all other
variables held constant, the financial impact would be:
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Impact of interest rate changes

£000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings
Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments
Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets
Impact on Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowings liabilities (no impact on CI&E)

0
250
250
0
250
148

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.
Foreign Exchange Risk
The Authority has no financial assets, or liabilities, denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure
to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

76

Independent auditor's report to the members of Derbyshire Fire &
Rescue Authority
We have audited the financial statements of Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority for the year ended 31 March
2016 on pages 26 to 83. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and the CIPFNLASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.
This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of
the Authority, as a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the members of the Authority, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities, the Chief Financial
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement narrative of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFNLASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, and for being satisfied that the financial statements give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority's
and the Group's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Financial Officer; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Statement to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
•

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and the Group as at 31 March 2016 and of
the Authority's and the Group's expenditure and income for the year then ended;

•

have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFNLASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you if:
•

the Annual Governance Statement set out on pages 12 to 25 does not reflect compliance with 'Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government: a Framework' published by CIPFNSOLACE in June 2007; or

•

the information given in the Narrative Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is not consistent with the financial statements; or
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•

any matters have been reported in the public interest under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of, the audit; or

•

any recommendations have been made under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or

•

any other special powers of the auditor have been exercised under the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Conclusion on Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority's arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
Authority's responsibilities
The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor's responsibilities
We are required under Section 20(1) (c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that
the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) requires us to
report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Authority
has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency _and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on
the specified criterion issued by C&AG in November 2015, as to whether Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority had
proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned
and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The C&AG determined this criterion as that necessary
for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether Derbyshire Fire & Rescue
Authority put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we
undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects,
Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.
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Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in November 2015, we are satisfied
that, in all significant respects, Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Authority in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Andrew Cardoza
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
One Snow/Jill,
Snow Hill Queensway
Binning/Jam,
B46GH
30/09/2016

79

Glossary of Terms used in the Statement of Accounts
The definitions within the glossary are designed to give the user an understanding of the technical terminology
contained in the Statement of Accounts.
Accounting Policies
These are a set of rules and codes of practice used when preparing the Accounts.
Accrual
A sum included in the final accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to an accounting period for
goods supplied and received or works done but for which payment has not been received or made by the end of
the period.
Actuarial Gain or Loss
The change in actuarial deficits or surpluses that arise because either events have not coincided with the
actuarial assumptions made for the last valuation (experience gains or losses), or because the actuarial
assumptions have changed.
Actuarial Valuation
A valuation of assets held, an estimate of the present value of benefits to be paid, and an estimate of required
future contributions, by an actuary, on behalf of a pension fund.
Amortisation
This is the amount set aside to pay for the loss in value of intangible assets.
Budget
This is a statement of the Authority’s (financial) plans for a specified period of time. A budget is prepared and
approved by the Authority prior to the start of the financial year. The Authority’s budget is prepared on an outturn
basis, which means that increases for pay and prices during the financial year are contained within the total
budget figure.
Business Rates Baseline
Determined for individual authorities at the outset of the business rates retention scheme by dividing the local
share of the Estimated Business Rates Aggregate between billing authorities on the basis of their proportionate
share.
Call Off Contract
The Authority tenders for the supply of contracts.
Capital Expenditure
This is expenditure on new assets or on the enhancement of existing assets so as to prolong their useful life or
enhance market value.
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
The Capital Financing Requirement represents Capital Expenditure financed by external debt and not by capital
receipts, revenue contributions, capital grants or third party contributions at the time of spending. It measures the
Authority’s underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.
Capital Grant
Grant from Central Government used to finance specific schemes in the Capital Programme. Where capital
grants are receivable, these are used, as far as possible, to finance Capital Expenditure to which they relate in
the year that the grants are received.
Capital Grants Unapplied
The Grants as described above which have yet to be used to finance capital expenditure.
Capital Receipts
Proceeds from the sale of an asset which may be used to finance new Capital Expenditure or to repay
outstanding loan debt as laid down within rules set by Central Government. They cannot be used to finance
normal day to day revenue spending.

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
The principal accountancy body dealing with local government finance.
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Componentisation
The separation of an asset into identifiable and significant components that have differing useful lives. This is so
that components of an asset that have a shorter life than the asset itself are depreciated separately to ensure that
the annual charge to revenue fully reflects the use of the asset.
Consumption of Economic Benefits (CEB)
Impairment caused by either physical damage, or deterioration in the quality of the service provided by the asset.
Impairment caused by a general fall in prices is referred to as No CEB.
Corporate & Democratic Core
The costs associated with corporate policy making and Member based activities, together with costs relating to
corporate management, public accountability and treasury management.
Creditor
An amount owed by the Authority for work done, goods received, or services rendered but for which payment has
not been made as at the date of the Balance Sheet.
Current Service Cost (Pensions)
This measure the increase in the present value of pension liabilities generated in the financial year by employees.
It is an estimate of the true economic cost of employing people in the financial year, earning service that will
eventually entitle them to the receipt of a lump sum and pension when they retire.
Debtor
A sum of money due to the Authority in the relevant financial year but not received as at the Balance Sheet date.
Depreciation
The measure of the consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of a non-current asset whether
arising from use, passage of time or obsolescence through technological or other changes.
Discretionary Added Years
Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive obligation to award and which
are awarded under the Authority’s discretionary powers, such as The Local Government (Discretionary
Payments) Regulations 1996, the Local Government (Discretionary Payments and Injury Benefits) (Scotland)
Regulations 1998, or the Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001.
DPFP
Derbyshire Police and Fire Partnership (Limited Liability Partnership), a legal entity established to manage the
build of the new joint headquarters.
Earmarked Reserves
These reserves represent monies set aside that can only be used for the specific purpose for which they were
established.
Emoluments
All taxable sums paid to or received by an employee including the value of any none cash benefits received.
Financial Year
The period covered by a set of financial accounts. The Authority’s financial year commences 1st April and finishes
31st March the following year.
General Fund
This reserve is to provide for unexpected expenditure that cannot be managed within existing budgets.
Government Grants Deferred
The balance of grants applied to the financing of non-current assets awaiting amortisation to the Income and
Expenditure Account to match depreciation on relevant assets.
Impairment
A reduction in the value of a non-current asset below the amount included on the Balance Sheet.
Imprest Account
Cash held locally to pay for small or urgent items.
Intangible Non-Current Assets
Assets which are not physical such as software licences.

81

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
These standards are developed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and regulate the
preparation and presentation of Financial Statements. Any material departures from these Standards would be
disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts. International Financial Reporting Standards are new standards developed
by the IASB.
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) is an independent, privately-funded accounting standardsetter based in London with representatives from several counties in the world. The IASB as the successor to the
IASC adopted existing International Accounting Standards (IAS’s), many of which have been revised.
International Accounting Standard
International Accounting Standards (IAS) were issued by the Board of the International Accounting Standards
Committee (IASC).The IASC was the predecessor to the IASB.
Limited Liability Partnership (LLP)
A legal business entity whereby the partners have limited liabilities.
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
The statutory minimum amount which an Authority is required to charge to revenue on an annual basis as a
provision to redeem debt.
Net Book Value
The amount at which non-current assets are included in the Balance Sheet.
Operating Lease
Agreement whereby ownership of the asset remains with the lessor and an annual rental is charged to the
Income and Expenditure Account.
Operational Assets
Non-current assets held, occupied, or utilised by the Authority in the direct delivery of those services for which it
has statutory responsibility.
Past Service Cost (Pensions)
These costs represent the increase in liabilities arising from decisions taken in the current year to improve
retirement benefits, but whose financial effect is derived from years of service earned in earlier years.
Precept
This is a levy, which the Authority makes through the council tax to pay for services.
Provision
A liability or loss which is likely or certain to be incurred but where the date and cost are uncertain.
Provision for Credit Liabilities
The provision for credit liabilities represents sums set aside for the repayment of Public Work Loans Board
(PWLB) debt and forms part of the capital financing reserve.
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB)
A Government Agency that provides longer term loans to Local Authorities at advantageous interest rates.
Remuneration
Reward for employment in the form of pay, salary, or wage, including allowances, benefits (such as company car,
medical plan, and pension plan), bonuses, cash incentives, and monetary value of non cash incentives.
Retirement Benefits
All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by employees that are
payable after the completion of employment. Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits payable as a
result of either (i) an employer’s decision to terminate employment before the normal retirement date or (ii) an
employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because these are not given
in exchange for services rendered by employees.
Revaluation Reserve
Amount arising from the revaluation of assets; the difference between the former book value of assets on the
balance sheet and the present (re-valued) book value of the asset.
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Reserve
An amount set aside for specific or general purpose.
Revenue Expenditure
The day to day running costs incurred by the Authority in providing services.
Revenue Financing
Resources provided from the Authority’s revenue budget to finance the cost of capital projects.
Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
Grant provided by Central Government, through the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, to all Local Authorities,
distributed according to a pre-determined formula. An authority’s Revenue Support Grant amount plus the local
share of Estimated Business Rates Aggregate will together comprise its Settlement Funding Assessment.
Tangible Non-Current Assets
These are assets which are physical such as buildings or land with an expected life of multiple years.
Unusable Reserves
These are reserves resulting from the interaction of legislation and proper accounting practices. These reserves
are not resource backed and cannot be used for any other purpose.
Usable Reserves
These are held as a working balance or for a specific future purpose.
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